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Chairman’s Statement 3 i #t 3

On behalf of the board of directors, I present the
annual report of Winfoong International Lim-
ited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries

(the “Group”) for the year ended

31 December 2008.
[

FINANCIAL RESULTS
For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group recorded

consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$39.8 million.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION, ANALYSIS
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

During the year, the Group continues to engage in property related
business and provision of horticultural services. The increase in
turnover by 65% was mainly contributed by the sale of properties
of Goldease Group.

The Group recorded net profit of approximately HK$39.8 million in

the year as a result of the following:

(i) decrease in net rental income of approximately HK$9.3
million;

(i) increase in valuation gains on investment properties of
approximately HK$61.3 million;

(i)  decrease in operating expenses of approximately HK$13.5
million;

(iv)  write-down of properties held for sale, net of tax, of
approximately HK$21.7 million;
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i #t 3

(v) decrease in interest expense of approximately HK$13.3

million; and

(vi)  decrease in share of profit of an associate of approximately
HK$28.1 million.

The improvement in the Group’s results was mainly due to the
one off non-cash item of impairment of goodwill of approximately
HK$321.1 million in 2007.

In the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group has completed
the demolition works of the property at 38 Conduit Road to
prepare the land for redevelopment. During the current year,
foundation work was completed. The present building plan was
also approved by the Building Authority during the current year.
In valuing the property as at 31 December 2008, DTZ Debenham
Tie Leung Limited (“DTZ"), an independent professional property
valuer, has made reference to recent market transactions in
comparable properties which is the same basis undertaken by
the property valuation of 31 December 2007. DTZ has utilized
the residual method which is a means of valuing land with
reference to its development potential by deducting development
cost, professional fees, interest and developer’s profit from its

estimated gross development value.

Following the distribution of the property holding business at 15
and 17 Magazine Gap Road in 2007, net rental income, operating
expenses and interest expenses have decreased. Share of profit
of an associate decreased as a result of the distribution of interest

in the associate in 2007.

The net asset value of the Group per share as at 31 December
2008 was approximately HK$0.13 (2007: HK$0.12) based on the
2,392,410,986 (2007: 2,392,410,986) shares issued.

The Group will focus its resources on the existing properties. The
redevelopment of the investment property at 38 Conduit Road is
in progress and is expected to be completed in 2010.
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i #t 3

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

All the Group's funding and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level. There is no
significant change in respect of treasury and financing policies
from the information disclosed in the Group's latest annual report.
The Group's monetary assets and liabilities are denominated and
the Group conducted its business transactions principally in Hong
Kong dollars or Singapore dollars. The Group aims to utilize the
fund for transactions that are denominated in the same currency.
The exchange rate risk of the Group is not considered significant,
no financial instruments for hedging purpose were employed.

The Group's working capital requirements are met by sales
proceeds of properties held for sale and committed undrawn
credit facilities. The year-end gearing ratio was 40% (2007: 52%)
based on bank loans less cash and bank balances to shareholders’
funds including minority interests. The improvement of gearing
ratio was mainly due to the valuation gains on investment
property. The Group's borrowings are arranged on a floating
rate basis. As at 31 December 2008, the outstanding bank
loans amounted approximately HK$130.5 million (2007:
HK$150.8 million). These loan facilities were secured by the
Group's properties. The Company has provided guarantees in
respect of bank facilities made available to subsidiaries totalling
approximately HK$317.9 million (2007: HK$237.1 million).

The following is the maturity profile of the Group's bank
borrowings as of 31 December 2008:

Within 1 year 0%
After 1 year but within 2 years 98%
After 2 years but within 5 years 2%
ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my colleagues
on the Board and the staff members of the Group for their strong
support and valuable contribution.

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 February 2009
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Corporate Governance Report 3% %

Year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFA - H =+—H IF /&

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of directors of the Company is committed to raising
the standard of corporate governance within the Group in order
to enhance the transparency in disclosure of material information.
The Board strives to implement the best practices embodied in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules where feasible and as far as

practicable.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code of
the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry by the Company,
all directors confirmed that they have complied with the required

standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board consists of seven members who have appropriate

corporate experience.

Of the seven directors, four are non-executive. Three of the non-
executive directors are deemed to be independent by definition of
the Listing Rules.

Guidelines are established which specify certain material transactions
that require the Board's approval which include mergers and
acquisitions, divestments and major capital expenditure.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs
of the Company and the Group. Apart from its statutory duties,
the Board reviews and approves the Company’s and the Group's
strategic plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions, annual business plans, reviews the financial
performance of the Company and the Group and evaluates the
performance and compensation of senior management personnel.
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Year ended 31 December 2008 #F ~FEENFEA| H=+—HIFFE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board has separate and independent access to management
and the company secretary. Management provides the Board
with reports of the Company’s and the Group's performance,
financial position and prospects, and these are reviewed by the
Board at each Board meeting. Directors may obtain independent
professional advice in furtherance of their duties at the Company’s
and the Group's expense.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Under Code A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick is both the
chairman of the Board, as well as the Group’s chief executive
officer ("CEO")/managing director. Given the size and that the
Company's and the Group’s current business operations and
administration have been relatively stable and straightforward, the
Board is satisfied that one person is able to effectively discharge
the duties of both positions. However, going forward, the Board
will review from time to time the need to separate the roles of the
chairman and the CEOQ if the situation warrants it.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The Board does not have a nomination committee as the Board
has been relatively stable with low turnover in the past few years.
However, if the need arises, the Board as a whole, will decide on
the nomination and appointment of new directors.

Details of the directors’ qualifications, directorships and other
particulars are set out on page 22.

Under Code A.4.2, every director should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. The Company's
Bye-law 87(1) states that the chairman of the board and/or
the managing director of the Company shall not be subject to
retirement by rotation and shall not be counted in determining
the number of directors to retire in each year. In the opinion of
the Board, the continuity of leadership role of the chairman is
important for the stability of the Company and is considered
beneficial to the growth of the Company. The Board is of the view
that the chairman should not be subject to retirement by rotation

at the present time.
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BOARD MEMBERSHIP (CONTINUED)

Under Code A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. Non-executive directors
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term although
they are subject to retirement and rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting at a regular interval. Under the Company’s
Bye-laws, except for the chairman of the Board and/or the
managing director of the Company, each director is effectively
appointed under an average term of three years.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Employees (including directors) are remunerated according
to their performance and working experience with reference
to prevailing market conditions. On top of basic salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options may by granted to eligible
employee by reference to the individual's performance. In
addition, the Group also provides social security benefits to its
staff such as mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong.

Under Code B.1, a remuneration committee should be established
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and duties. A majority of the members of the remuneration
committee should be independent non-executive directors.

The Board has not established a remuneration committee. The
Board conducts an informal assessment of the individual director’s
contribution. No director decides his or her own remuneration.
Details of directors’ remuneration for the year are set out in note
7 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors. One of the committee members has financial

management experience.

The audit committee has full access to and co-operation of
the management. The committee also has discretion to invite
any director or executive officer to attend its meetings and is
assured of adequate resources to enable it to discharge its
function properly. CCIF CPA Limited, the external auditors have
unrestricted access to the audit committee.
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Year ended 31 December 2008 #F ~FEENFEA| H=+—HIFFE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The audit committee meets periodically with management and the

auditors of the Company to discuss and review:

(a) the annual and interim financial statements to shareholders

before submission to the Board for adoption;

(b)  the Company’s and Group’s accounting policies and system
of internal controls;

(c) the audit plan of the Company's external and internal

auditors;

(d)  the results of the external and internal auditors’ examination
and their evaluation of the Company’s and the Group's

internal control system;
(e)  the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

(f)  the assistance given by the Company’s and the Group's
officers to the external and internal auditors; and

(g) interested person transactions.

Under Code C.3.3, the audit committee should have the duties
to be primary responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of

resignation or dismissal of that auditor.

The recommendation on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor of the Company is made by the Board to

the audit committee for approval.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT BOARD AND
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis during the year to
review the Company’s and the Group's operations and financial
results. Details of attendance of the directors at the Board

meetings and audit committee meetings are as follows.

PRS-V RS IR 4 TN
Wt 8
FREEGTEMRITEH  RAFDARE

CEVISERE LS - EELEEER R
HREREERRSIAHOT -

Board Audit committee
= BERZEE
Number of Number of
meetings Attendance meetings Attendance
BENY EEREY RS HERE
Executive directors WiTES
Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick EREEE 7 7 2 N/A
(Chairman of the Board) (E5e3R) TEm
Mr. Cheong Kim Pong E e 7 7 2 N/A
TEm
Mr. Cheong Sim Eng E4REE 7 7 2 N/A
TEm
Non-executive directors FuiTES
Mdm Lim Ghee H EXT 7 N/A 2 N/A
TER TEam
Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng BEALT 7 N/A 2 N/A
(alternate to Mdm. Lim Ghee) (MEZLZEEER) TER Tam
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Mr. Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic PEBLE 7 - 2 2
(Chairman of audit committee) (BRZEEER)
Mr. Kan Fook Yee [l 7 - 2 2
Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BoEEE 7 - 2 2
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Year ended 31 December 2008 #F ~FEENFEA| H=+—HIFFE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2008,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group at the date and of the Group's results and cash
flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared on the going
concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
accounting standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page
26.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2008, the auditors of the

Company and its subsidiaries would receive approximately
HK$463,000 (2007: HK$629,000) for audit and audit related
services, HK$49,000 (2007: HK$39,000) for tax services and
HK$67,000 (2007: HK$402,000) for other services.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s system of

internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group emphasizes on the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group's risk
exposure. The Group’s system of internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure

in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that,
based on information furnished to it and on its own observations,

the present internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of the

Group's performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control and is of the view that the system
of internal control adopted for the year ended 31 December
2008 is sound and is effective to safeguard the interests of the

shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.
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Directors’ Report 3 3¢ € 3t 1

The directors herein present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company consists of investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal

subsidiaries are set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2008 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
29 to 141.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out

below.
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RESULTS B

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-BLFE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EENE ZZELF ZZERF —ZERFE —ZENME
(restated)
(&%)

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT TET T#T TERT T&x

Turnover BT 48,533 29,339 26,169 128,349 46,441
Profit/(loss) before BrEATR R,

taxation (E18) 34,290 (311,249) 154,587 140,306 547,386
Income tax FiSHT 5,505 (1,021) (4,055) (28,244) (93,025)
Profit/(loss) before Rt DEIR TR

minority interests AR (&) 39,795 (312,270) 150,532 112,062 454,361
Minority interests PER RS - - - 3,069 79
Profit/(loss) attributable ey

to shareholders HE(E1E) 39,795 (312,270 150,532 115,131 454,440

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS B~ A K D MOBOIORE 25

As at 31 December

W+=A=+—8H
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
—EEN\FE ZEZLFE ZETERE ZTZTRHE —ZTEOHE
(restated)
(&E:5)

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TER TER TR

Total assets BEE 460,849 449,979 2,641,002 2,406,180 2,397,915
Total liabilities Baf (141,065)  (169,330)  (756,712)  (713,620)  (817,441)
Minority interests DY R - - - - (3,052)
Net assets BEFE 319,784 280,649 1,884,290 1,692,560 1,577,422

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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FIXED ASSETS AND PROPERTY HELD FOR
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group are set out

in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated summary statement of

changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st December 2008, the Company's reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to
approximately HK$87,688,000.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately HK$61,000 (2007: HK$64,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 90% (2007: 48%) of the total sales
for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 45% (2007: 41%).

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
less than 30% (2007: accounted for 40%) of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included

therein amounted to 31% in the year ended 31 December 2007.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates, nor those shareholders which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had

any interest in the five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of

this report were:-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:—
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Cheong Kim Pong
Cheong Sim Eng

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:—
Kan Fook Yee
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:—
Lim Ghee
Cheong Hooi Kheng (alternate to Madam Lim Ghee)

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws,
Madam Lim Ghee and Mr. Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic will retire
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all of

them to be independent.

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
At 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of

directors and chief executive in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations as
required to be disclosed under and within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") were as

follows:-

(I) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY:—

R Z R R
EHNEISRIT Y RRBEAGERIEE
B MBAR T LN AMFARR—F
PO 7 S B 1 OREBRME IR 5D T 4% 1E 2 R
Baw-

W B
RZBZENF+_A=1+—H BEERTE
THRAEBRARRR R EHERR 2D - 18
M REST - HERBEESLBAEED
(TR BRI ) EXV 282 %E Rzt A
FREZEDMRRWT © —

() AL F By B AT BB 2 M AT —

Type of interests and

number of ordinary shares held

EmER RS EERYE

Name of director Corporate Family Total Percentage
e AT e s BaL
(Note (a))
(Hf=E (a)
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick B 1,602,645,787 3,397,000  1,506,042,787 63%
Cheong Kim Pong BEE 1,502,645,787 - 1,502,645,787 63%
Cheong Sim Eng BRE 1,602,645,787 - 1,502,645,787 63%
Cheong Hooi Kheng B 1,502,645,787 2,000,000  1,504,645,787 63%
(Note (b)) GEION
Notes: P& -
(@) These directors were deemed to have corporate interests in the (a) HRZEEEEREAARRTIERR

shares in the Company by virtue of their beneficial interests in the
shares in Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC"), a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The 1,502,645,787 shares represented
the same interests and were duplicated amongst these directors.

(b) Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng's directorship is alternate to Mdm. Lim Ghee.

BREXEARAA(BEEXD ZR
iz BB AREERARTRNZA
AIMERS © 7% 1,502,645,787 R A% 17 7Y 5
Az MEXSEECHEESR
5l o

(o) EBHZEIAMBELLZEEEE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

(1)  LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF AN ASSOCIATED CORPORATION — HFC

w2 AR (H)
(i) A—HBEEAFR—BREEZIRBZ
i

Type of interests and number of shares held

REERRAERNEE
Name of director Personal Family Corporate Other Total Percentage
HEpg A EN AT Hit Bz BOl
(Note (a))  (Note (b))
(KizE(a)) (B (b))
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Ei e 8,539,454 1,237,830 104,058,803 134,537,600 248,373,687 38%
Cheong Kim Pong EoE 2,829,178 553,300 104,058,803 134,537,600 241,978,881 37%
Cheong Sim Eng EHRE 73,955,300 257,700 31,263,663 134,537,600 240,014,263 36%
Cheong Hooi Kheng EEH 10,489,000 - - 134,537,600 145,026,600 22%
(Note (c)) (BF5E (c))
Notes: ML
(a) These shares were beneficially held by a number of companies in (a) ZERNBHZEEFTEE TR
which the directors had beneficial interests. FARERES °
(b) These shares were beneficially held by a company in which the (b) ZEBRMBHZEEETERIEEEEE
directors had deemed interests. —MRAIERESR °
() Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng's directorship is alternate to Mdm. Lim Ghee. (c) SBEENRTAMBRLIZEEES -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, taken to be interested
or deemed to have any other interests or short positions in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, that were required to be entered into the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates a share option scheme, further details of
which are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’
interests” and "“Share option schemes” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements, there
were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest subsisted at the end of year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the directors have any interests in
competing business of the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2008, the following persons (not being directors
or chief executive of the Company) had an interest in the following
long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO.

Jik JBE B it
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

BB B Sl N L 2 2 (5

Number of shares held

FisRO#E
Note Direct Indirect Total Percentage

Name £ i3 B I ok B
HFL International Consortium HFL International Consortium

Limited (“HFL") Limited ( [HFL] ) 1,455,202,784 - 1,455,202,784 61%
Hong Fok Enterprises Limited BRESHERLNA

("HFE") (BRE5]) (i - 1,455,202,784 1,455,202,784 61%
Hong Fok Investment Holding BRERAR([BR])

Company, Limited ("HFIH") (i) 47,443,003 1,455,202,784 1,502,645,787 63%
Hong Fok Corporation Limited BREFERLA

("HFC") (IBREX]) (i) - 1,502,645,787 1,502,645,787 63%
Barragan Trading Corp. Barragan Trading Corp. 285,312,566 - 285,312,566 12%
Praise Time Co Limited Praise Time Co Limited 136,000,000 - 136,000,000 6%
Notes: B 5E -

(i) HFE was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly-owned
subsidiary, HFL, did in the issued share capital of the Company by virtue of
HFE's interest in HFL.

(i) HFIH was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly-
owned subsidiary, HFE, did in the issued share capital of the Company by
virtue of HFIH's interest in HFE. In addition, HFIH was directly interested in

approximately 2% of the issued share capital of the Company.

(iii) HFC was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly-owned
subsidiary, HFIH, did in the issued share capital of the Company by virtue of
HFC's interest in HFIH.

Save as disclosed above, no other person was recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as
having an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as at 31 December 2008.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There is no significant event subsequent to the balance sheet date
as at 31 December 2008.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the year
and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITORS
In November 2005, PKF resigned as auditors of the Company.

Appointment of CCIF CPA Limited as auditors of the Company
was approved in January 2006.

CCIF CPA Limited retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 February 2009
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DIRECTORS
Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, aged 59, is the chairman and

managing director of the Company. Mr. Cheong is a member of
the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the
Group in 1991 and was appointed as a director of the Company in
1996. He has over 36 years' experience in property development.
He is a director of the Group’s ultimate holding company, Hong
Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC").

Mr. Cheong Kim Pong, aged 66, is an executive director of
the Company. Mr. Cheong joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed a director of the Company in 1996. He has over 45
years' experience in construction management and real estate
development. He is a director of the Group’s ultimate holding
company, HFC.

Mr. Cheong Sim Eng, aged 48, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Cheong graduated from the Chaminade University
of Honolulu with a Bachelor of Arts degree. He joined the Group
in 1991 and was appointed a director of the Company in 1996. He
has over 23 years' experience in the construction industry. He is a
director of the Group’s ultimate holding company, HFC.

Mr. Kan Fook Yee, SBS, aged 72, is an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of the Company. He
is a barrister at law, a Fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors as well as a Fellow member of the Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators. He was appointed an independent non-executive
director of the Company in 1998. In addition, Mr. Kan is an adviser
to the Heung Yee Kuk, a statutory advisory body established under
the Heung Yee Kuk Ordinance (Chapter 1097 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). In February 2009, Mr. Kan ceased to be chairman and non-
executive director of Henderson Sunlight Assets Management
Limited.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic, aged 62, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. He is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and has also
been admitted as a solicitor in England, Australia and Singapore.
He joined the Group in 1994 and was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 1996. He has over 36

years' experience as a solicitor.

Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, aged 59, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of
the Company. He joined the Group and was appointed an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
of Social Science degree. He has over 29 years’ experience
in corporate restructuring, corporate finance, capital markets,
direct investment and asset management. Mr. Chan held senior
positions in various American banks in Hong Kong and fund

management companies.

Madam Lim Ghee, aged 97, is a non-executive director of the
Company. She joined the Group in 1991 and was appointed a non-
executive director of the Company in 1996. She is a non-executive
director of the Group's ultimate holding company, HFC. Madam
Lim Ghee is the mother of Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong, Cheong Pin
Chuan, Patrick, Cheong Sim Eng, Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng and
Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Tsui Yeung Kun, Andrew, aged 53, is the director of the

property development division of the Group. Mr. Tsui graduated
from Christian Brothers College in the United States with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting and Economics. He
joined the Group in 1995 and has over 6 years' experience in the
management of investment funds and 11 years’ experience in
equity research and stock broking activities in Hong Kong. Mr. Tsui
is Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick’s brother.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc, aged 36, is the director of the

business development division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
Southern California in the United States of America and a Master
of Business Administration degree from the University of Chicago
Graduate School of Business. He joined the Group in 2000 and has
over 3 years' experience in the merchant banking field and 8 years’

experience in business development.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hian, Howard, aged 35, is the director of the
project management division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
Southern California in the United States of America. He joined
the Group in 2004 and has over 3 years’ experience in the private

equity field and 4 years’ experience in project management.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc and Cheong Tze Hian, Howard are the
sons of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick.

Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng, aged 54, is the general manager of
the Group. Ms. Cheong graduated from Armstrong College of
Berkeley in the United States of America with a Bachelor of
Science degree. She joined the Group in 1993 and has over 23
years’ experience in the planning, organising and control of office

administration and personnel management.

Mr. Cheong Aik Yen, Roy, aged 43, is the senior manager of
business promotion of the Group. Mr. Cheong graduated from
Western New England College in Massachusetts with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering. He joined the Group
in 2002 and has 3 years' experience in the merchant banking field.
He is the personal assistance to directors of the Group's ultimate
holding company, HFC. Mr. Cheong is the son of Mr. Cheong Kim
Pong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng, aged 55, is the financial advisor of

the Group. Ms. Cheong holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Business Administration from the California State University,
Hayward and a Master of Business Administration degree from
the Chaminade University of Honolulu. She joined the Group
in 1991 and has over 27 years' experience in the construction
industry. She is a director of the Group’s ultimate holding
company, HFC. Ms. Cheong was appointed a non-executive

director of the Company, alternate to Madam Lim Ghee, in 2005.

Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng and Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng are sisters
of Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong, Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and
Cheong Sim Eng.

Mr. Chan Yuen King, Paul, aged 33, is the project manager of
the property development division of the Group. Mr. Chan holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Architectural Studies, Master of
Science degree in Construction Project Management, and a
Master Degree in Landscape Architecture from the University
of Hong Kong. He also holds a Bachelor of Law degree from the
Manchester Metropolitan University. Mr. Chan is a chartered
builder and has 10 years' experience in the construction industry
with 6 years’ experience in project management. He joined the
Group in 2003, left in March 2007 and returned in October 2007.

Mr. Tong Kwok Wai, Anthony, aged 36, is the senior quantity
surveyor of the Group. He is a Member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a
Registered Professional Surveyor. He holds a Bachelor Degree
in Quantity Surveying from The City University of Hong Kong and
a Master Degree in Construction Project Management from the
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2008 and has over
12 years' quantity surveying experience. Mr. Tong has worked in

construction cost consultant firm, contractor and developer.
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Independent Auditor’s Report 18 . 4% 3 fili 8t

CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED

20/F Sunning Plaza
10 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF WINFOONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Winfoong International Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages
29 to 141, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

PRESEMEHMARAE
BE g
#HIEE105R

MEARE201E

BYRBA®RE
BEREEBRAERDRAZRER

(RBEFRETMRZZBERAR)

AAZBED (AT TR Bl EZ R
CEBEARAB(TERADENFE29EE
FINENEEVBRE - EFHA AR

AR—EENE+_A=+—BrBABE
HERRAEREE  HERALFESHS
BUGE  FARSEDHERGAR
FOURFTESETBEME X E MW7
7

A =2
HEmE

o 2 i T R AR I W A

ERBIEEAR
BB

BREBRELSSAMAGEM
HELRBREBDBGD 2 KE
ME - wERE Eii DD IR % TS IR
xR BEIRERG  BEIEERRREA
Eﬂﬂ?ﬂﬂﬂ#&ﬁ’\],ﬁﬁ%#ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂW“Bﬁt?'}“ :
PATE (R I 8 85 K #8 AR PRt (I im 2 7 B R RE
HFERSIE)  BEAEMEENSITIE
RETRBEATEEABZ &5t EH -



Independent Auditor’s Report 18 . 4% $ bl it 3

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

e Wl 49 3 A

BANEEERERMABZITENER Y
HZEMBRRREBR - AREDRBAR
FENRDEEQRMME - (B BEAFERE
TR RS - BRULSASNAR RS I B E A i -
BN E AR E B AR B A E A A L&
EE L EREE-

ﬁf?ﬁE*ETF%&%QE%E?ﬁ“AﬁE%E’JE% %
EAETER - RFERAERMAETE
BT AR B SOETTERZ - L/{/\Eiﬁﬁmﬁt%
MBBREES T FAEMERBREL -

ERERETEFARSEEERERMEAD

BEBERERBENEZERRE BRNZE
2 Fr 845 i BUam e B - SRR F (5B 75

KOBABERBRL (TS EARFFRER
SlE) MERR - EFHZEREFEE - &%
ZENEBEARRUEAERA T 2P BEHEK
BRHOAMEE  URFTEEERERF
BAFSHRARNANFEEETETARREER
R BRNERFEEEMEANEHBE
ERRERMENGHHEERTAE UK
AHEMBREROERZ275

HAEE RMAERERORENEZE
& RBEMANERERRME T AR -

Annual Report 2008 &% J\4F4EH 27



Independent Auditor’s Report 18 . 4% 3 fili 8t

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 February 2009

Yau Hok Hung
Practising Certificate Number P04911
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Consolidated Income Statement £35S U8R

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #; % ~FEE/NFA - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2008 2007
Note —EINE el e
BifzE HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
Turnover = 3 3 48,533 29,339
Cost of sales SHEMAR (44,579) (16,793)
Gross profit E 3,954 12,546
Valuation gains on investment property REMELERE 13 75,501 14,173
Other revenue Hepl 4 153 302
Other net income HAR A58 4 510 1,415
Write-down of inventories FEMH (25,908) -
Operating and administrative expenses TERITHAY (19,741) (33,218)
Profit/(loss) from operations EEREN/(B1R) 34,469 (4,782)
Finance costs REMA 5(a) (179) (13,490)
Share of profit of an associate [EIG— B E DAL R - 28,145
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZRESE 14 - (321,122)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEAIER (B8 5 34,290 (311,249)
Income tax credit/lexpense) FeRE R/ (F%) 6(a) 5,505 (1,021)
Profit/(loss) for the year AERH/ (BE) 39,795 (312,270)
Attributable to: MUT BELE
Equity shareholders of the Company ADAERERFAA 9 39,795 (312,270)
Minority interests DERRRES _ B
Profit/(loss) for the year KERR/ (B8 39,795 (312,270)
Dividend BKE 10 - 1,731,047
Earnings/(loss) per share BREMN/ (BE) 1
Basic and diluted EAREE HK cents 1.66 8l HK cents (16.70) 1l
The notes on pages 36 to 141 form part of these financial FI6E14 BZHWEBR L ST HHRET L —
statements. 2 e
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 54 % i f1 {5 3%

As at 31 December 2008 i ~FEFENFES ZH=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LA#TCFHE)
2008 2007
Note —BEN\F —ETHF
BisE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT FET FAT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets ElEEE 13
— Investment property —REME 355,320 273,320
— Other property, plant and —EMmE - BER
equipment B 4,116 3,676
— Interests in leasehold land —REEMEAET
held for own use under KEBRZEE
operating leases T R 440 452
359,876 277,448
Goodwill Gk 14 - -
Pledged bank deposits HIRRITIER 19 4 10
Other financial assets HGmERE 16 1,610 2,634
361,490 279,992
Current assets MEEE
Inventories =E 17 94,531 160,965
Trade and other receivables B RAEMBYEE 18 2,341 3,629
Tax recoverable AEHE 24(a) 1 8
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEEY 19 2,486 5,485
99,359 169,987
Current liabilities P =RE
Trade and other payables ZIREMBEMNERE 20 9,937 11,557
Bank borrowings RITEE 21 235 -
Tax payables FESTHA 24(a) 504 856
10,676 12,413
Net current assets RENEEFHE 88,683 157,574

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7



Consolidated Balance Sheet £5: &% i fi {5 %

As at 31 December 2008 i ~FEFENFES ZH=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LA#TCFHE)
2008 2007
Note —E2EN\F ZTT+F
BisE HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT FET FAT
Total assets less current BEERRBEE
liabilities 450,173 437,566
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEE 21 130,306 150,829
Loan from a fellow subsidiary R EREER
EBARIZER 26 - 302
Deferred tax liabilities FERERE 24(b) 83 5,786
130,389 156,917
NET ASSETS GEFE 319,784 280,649
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRARFEE 25(a)
Share capital AR 119,620 119,620
Reserves GG 200,164 161,029
Total equity attributable to RATEREE AR
equity shareholders IR AR
of the Company 319,784 280,649
Minority interests DEBRRER - -
TOTAL EQUITY R 319,784 280,649

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

February 2009.

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Director

EBEZE

The notes on pages 36 to 141 form part of these financial

statements.

Cheong Kim Pong
BEE
Director

BF

EEFEN_TTENF AT EABERE

RETIEE -

FI6E 141 BB ETBHREZ —

#5 -
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Balance Sheet & & £ 15 3%

As at 31 December 2008 i ~FEFENFES ZH=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LA#TCFHE)
2008 2007
Note —BEN\F —ETLHF
(i3 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THET FAET FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in a subsidiary R—HEMNBARZIEE 15 1 1
Current assets MEBEE
Trade and other receivables 85 RE M EAERIE 18 207,939 209,747
Cash and cash equivalents Re LR eEEY 19 6 7
207,945 209,754
Current liabilities wEEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAERRIE 20 (517) (1,260)
Net current assets MEEEFE 207,428 208,494
NET ASSETS EEFE 207,429 208,495
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR fd 25(b)
Share capital BrA 119,620 119,620
Reserves f#H 87,809 88,875
TOTAL EQUITY MRS 207,429 208,495

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27

February 2009.

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick

Director

EF

The notes on pages 36 to 141 form part of these financial

statements.

Cheong Kim Pong

EEAE
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 5% & HE 33 55 B

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #; % ~FEE/NFA - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2008 2007

Note —EBN\F —ETE
M5 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TBRT TR TAT TAT

Total equity at 1 January R—A—B2ERE5E 280,649 1,884,290
Net income recognised directly HiERERF
in equity: ZWAFEE -
Exchange differences on translation ~ HE/EINE A
of financial statements EM%?E?EZER
of overseas subsidiaries =8 25 (280) 5,570
Change in fair value of available- AEEERSFATE
for-sale securities & 25 (380) 380
Share of movements in reserves NG
of an associate fEEE 25 = 6,226
Net income for the year recognised ~ FREERERT
directly in equity HR WA T (660) 12,176
Net profit/(loss) for year REGRF(B8)FE 39,795 (312,270)
Total recognised income and FREWRZBA
expense for the year kL% 39,135 (300,094)
Attributable to: LA AL
Equity shareholders of the Company AR AliEzais 8 AfE(L 39,135 (300,094)
Minority interests DRI R R = -
39,135 (300,094)
Distribution in specie ENDIK 25 - (1,731,047)
Movements in equity arising from ERAXZMESEZ
capital transactions: EREE
Shares issued for the acquisition of ~ UKBEFTE A 7]
subsidiaries BEITRG 25 - 427,500
Total equity at 31 December R+=ZB=+—-H2
RREE 319,784 280,649

The notes on pages 36 to 141 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement %353 4m H#K

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #; % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

2008 2007
Note —EBEN\E ZETLHF
FisE HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Operating activities R
Profit/(Loss) before taxation R ATER, (E518) 34,290 (311,249)
Adjustments for: AT % -
— Valuation gains on investment —REMEMLE
property Wz 13 (75,501) (14,173)
- Revaluation losses/(gains) —gFEftEE/
on buildings (Wzs) 13 9 (40)
- Depreciation —E 5(c) 1,136 1,058
— Amortisation of land lease premium —TiEEEREE 5(c) 12 12
— Impairment loss for bad and —RERZRBEEER
doubtful debts 5(c) - 97
~ Finance costs —RERA 5(a) 179 13,490
— Impairment loss on goodwill -BEZREESE 14 - 321,122
— Interest income —FBWA 4 (22) (137)
— Share of profit of an associate —ERBE N R A - (28,145)
- Gain on disposal of fixed assets - HERTEEKE 4 - (35)
— Write-down of inventories —TFE MR 25,908 -
— Foreign exchange loss/(gain) —EREE () 866 (1,466)
Operating loss before RETEBESRBAILE
changes in working capital i (13,123) (19,466)
Decrease in inventories FERD 39,911 12,325
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and 2 5 R E M fE AR IR
other receivables B/ (Em) 1,181 (764)
Decrease in trade and B 5 R H RN RIER
other payables (2,068) (4,010)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations ELFEL/(ER)2RE 25,901 (11,915)
Tax paid EAFIE
— Hong Kong profits tax paid —BRABBFEH - 6)
— Hong Kong profits tax refunded —BHEFEHEE 7 1
— Singapore income tax paid — BN AR R (642) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) R
operating activities FESE/ (FR)BE&FE 25,266 (11,920)

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement %5453 4im B %K

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #; % ~FEE/NFA - H =+—H IFF¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2008 2007
Note —EBEN\EF —ETHF
BizE HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Investing activities BREEE
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REAEERRITIER 6 231
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABRTEE TR (8,105) (23,293)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HEBEEEMSIIA 22 158
Loan repaid by a director of a subsidiary —EMBAR ESEECER 490 500
Loan repaid by a fellow subsidiary —fHERMBRRIEEZER 54 -
Interest received [REENRSS 22 98
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents WHEHBARHEC RS R
in respect of acquisition of subsidiaries ReEBYRLFE 30 - (13,144)
Net cash used in investing activities REZHMEAREE RS FHE 21 (35,450)
Financing activities MEEH
Increase in amount due to BN —REENRFIE
a related company iyl 508 3,558
(Decreasel/increase in amount due to J?&’E\H—F'EH:J?WE
a fellow subsidiary FIEZ CRA),/ (302) 248
Increase in amount due to the fﬁa‘”@ S UNGIE
ultimate holding company ;Y 146 -
Proceeds from new bank loans REFERITER ZFBRE 17,454 362,000
Repayment of bank loans BRRITER (38,163) (297,611)
Interest paid BERFE (372) (13,277)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents EVMn k@B ReRES
in respect of distribution in specie SEMRLFR 10 - (6,996)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEBF(ER),/EE
financing activities ZEE R (20729 47922
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BeRREEEY2
and cash equivalents (R, S inE5E (2,974) 552
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January W—A—BzBRERELZEY 19 5,485 4,342
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ EZREEFE (25) 591
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZB=+—-H2
31 December RERREEEY 19 2,486 5,485
The notes on pages 36 to 141 form part of these financial FI6E 141 BZ MRS BHRE Y —
statements. 5 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these development to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting years reflected in these financial

statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)

and the Group’s interest in an associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 1(g));

- other buildings (see note 1(h)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-

sale securities (see note 1(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

<)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and estimates with a significant
risk of material adjustment in the next year are

discussed in note 32.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are

exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that

control commences until the date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised profits but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

<)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly or
indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of
a financial liability. Minority interests are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet with equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Minority interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the total profit or
loss for the year between minority interests and the

equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed
the minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary,
the excess, and any further losses applicable to
the minority, are charged against the Group's
interest except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is
allocated all such profits until the minority’s share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group has been

recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(j)), unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified

as held for sale).

1.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method and is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change
in the Group's share of the associate’s net assets,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). The
consolidated income statement includes the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associate for the year, including any impairment loss
on goodwill relating to the investment in the associate

recognised for the year (see notes 1(e)) and (j)).

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group's
interest in the associate is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form

part of the Group's net investment in the associate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

e)

Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in an associate
over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 1(j)). In respect of associates, the carrying
amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount
of the interest in the associate.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

e)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate
during the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or

loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company’'s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates, are as

follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at cost, which is their transaction price unless
fair value can be more reliably estimated using
valuation technigues whose variables include only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their

classification:

Investment in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each
balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss does not include any dividends or interest earned
on these investments as these are recognised in
accordance with the policies set out in note 1(s)(vi) and

(vii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

f)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in
the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see

note 1(j)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised directly in equity, except foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from changes
in the amortised cost of monetary items such as
debt securities which are recognised directly in profit
or loss. Dividend income from these investments
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policy set out in note 1(s)(vi) and, where these
investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in profit or loss in accordance with the policy set
out in note 1(s)(vii). When these investments
are derecognised or impaired (see note 1(j)), the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised directly

in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments

or they expire.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

]

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 1(i)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in note 1(s)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted
for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted
for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
1(i)), and the same accounting policies are applied
to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note 1(i).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)

Other property, plant and equipment

The following properties held for own use are stated
in the balance sheet at their revalued amount, being
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation:

- land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon, where the fair values of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the
lease and the building is not clearly held under an

operating lease (see note 1(i)); and

- buildings held for own use which are situated
on leasehold land, where the fair value of the
building could be measured separately from the
fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of

the lease (see note 1(i)).

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would be

determined using fair values at the balance sheet date.

The other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(j)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEEHEOR (8)

(CONTINUED)

h)  Other property, plant and equipment (continued) h) ALY ~ BB Bt ()
Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held REGFEERMEEEZE
for own use are generally dealt with in reserves. The —RIEREARRE - EFHIIME
only exceptions are as follows: ST
-  when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be - WELEBHELM ZFHE

charged to profit or loss to the extent that it EEREAANNER  BEEHE
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in HREZERAIREHE
respect of that same asset immediately prior to EREEBEANREZ2ER
the revaluation; and kR
—  when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be - WELEEHAESK 25K
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a FFABEZEK - WUABE—
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same BEELNBERBERRA
asset had previously been charged to profit or Sl BB ARTE -
loss.
The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant BITHEZME  BEREH#EZ
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct R - BEEMEIRAR EEST
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs AR M@ - 915 A EIRE
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring NRBIE B A K IR1EIE B FTfE it
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate REFHILA - A REELLFIRE
proportion of production overheads and borrowing ftb A B A AN DB B AR (LB 5
costs (see note 1(u)). 1(u) °

46 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the revaluation reserve to retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives of

40 years.

- Furniture, equipment and other fixed assets are

depreciated over 5 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 1(g));

and
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i) Leased assets (continued)

0

Classification of assets leased to the Group

(continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 1(g)) or is held for
development for sale (see note 1(k)(ii)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Impairment of assets

i)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other
than investments in subsidiaries and associates:
see note 1(j)(ii)) and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about

one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
j)  Impairment of assets (continued) 0 EREWAL ()
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity 1) FEETE R IR 75 5 14 2 7

Bl JE W I i (]
(%)

EFEEAEREEE A
BATHAEE RERE

securities and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried
at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
j)  Impairment of assets (continued) i EAEEAE ()
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity i) REHERIEARZE SN 7
securities and other receivables (continued) BB A W K 2
(#F)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset's carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in equity is removed from equity
and is recognised in profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognised in

profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised directly

in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. FBEEFBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
j)  Impairment of assets (continued) 0 EREWAL ()

D) RETERIRAE A2

i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IF %

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA ICATH)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

) Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)  Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:
- property, plant and equipment (other than

properties carried at revalued amounts);

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land

classified as being held under an operating

lease;

- investments in subsidiaries and associate
(except for those classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is

classified as held for sale)); and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated

annually whether or not there is any indication of

impairment.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #; % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICq]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

»

Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its net selling price and
value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA —H =+—H IF &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

) Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill

is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.

k) Inventories

i)

Horticultural services
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the standard cost basis
(which approximates the average actual cost)
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008  #; % ~FEENFA _H =+—H IF %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

k)

Inventories (continued)

0

ii)

Horticultural services (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Property development

Inventories in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost and net realisable values

are determined as follows:

- Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses, an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing cost capitalised
(see note 1(u)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and costs to

be incurred in selling the property.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA —H =+—H IF &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

k)  Inventories (continued)
ii)  Property development (continued)
- Completed property held for sale
In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group, cost is
determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development
project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less costs to be

incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present

location and condition.

1) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment losses of doubtful debts (see
note 1(j)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment losses of doubtful
debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008  #; % ~FEENFA _H =+—H IF %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

m)

n)

0)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(r)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA —H =+—H IF &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

p) Employee benefits

i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect

would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

it)  Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a capital
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date using the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that

the options will vest.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008  #; % ~FEENFA _H =+—H IF %

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

p)

Q)

Employee benefits (continued)
ii)  Share-based payments (continued)
During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based compensation
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
share-based compensation reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires

(when it is released directly to retained profits).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised directly in

equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA —H =+—H IF &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008  #; % ~FEENFA _H =+—H IF %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA —H =+—H IF &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q) Income tax (continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008  #; % ~FEENFA _H =+—H IF %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BREEFHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
r)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent r) B MR - M RSk
liabilities £
i) Financial guarantees issued i) P BB ER

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. \Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group's policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition

of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(r)(iii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA —H =+—H IF &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

ii)

(ifi)

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a
business combination are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition
at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 1(r)
(iii). Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued
are disclosed in accordance with note 1(r)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008  #; % ~FEENFA _H =+—H IF %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r

s)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(iii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,

if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in

which they are earned.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA —H =+—H IF &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

s) Revenue recognition (continued)

ii)  Sale of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held
for sale is recognised upon the signing of the
sale and purchase agreement or the issue of an
occupation permit by the relevant government
authorities, whichever is the later. Deposits and
instalments received on properties sold prior to
the date of revenue recognition are included in

the balance sheet under forward sales deposits

and instalments received.

iii)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes

and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

iv) Contract revenue

When the outcome of a construction contract

can be estimated reliably:

- revenue from a fixed price contract
is recognised using the percentage
of completion method, measured by
reference to the percentage of contract
costs incurred to date to estimated total
contract costs for the contract; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008  #; % ~FEENFA _H =+—H IF %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

s) Revenue recognition (continued)

iv)

vi)

vii)

Contract revenue (continued)

- revenue from a cost plus contract is
recognised by reference to the recoverable
costs incurred during the period plus a
percentage of the recoverable cost on an
appropriate proportion of the total fee,
measured by reference to the proportion
that costs incurred to date bear to the
estimated total costs of the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs

incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Management fee income
Management fee income is recognised at the

time when the services are rendered.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is

established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the

investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA —H =+—H IF &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet
items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in a separate

component of equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised
in equity which relates to that foreign operation is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008  #; % ~FEENFA _H =+—H IF %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

u)

V)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to

get ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or

sale are interrupted or completed.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party

is considered to be related to the Group if:

i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group.

ii) the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

iii)  the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA —H =+—H IFF/%&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU Tt E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

V)

Related parties (continued)

iv)  the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals;

v)  the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the

entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products or
services (business segment), or in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other

segments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEE/NFA " H=+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICq]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

W)

Segment reporting (continued)

In accordance with the Group's internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting
format and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of these

financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and property, plant and equipment.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between
group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available to

other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used

for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,

tax balances and corporate and financing expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA —H =+—H IF &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued the following new Interpretations
and an amendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the

current accounting period of the Group and the Company:

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11, HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share

transactions
° HK(IFRIC)-Int 12, Service concession arrangements

° HK(IFRIC)-Int 14, HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined
benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and

their interaction

o Amendment to HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement, and HKFRS 7,
Financial instruments: Disclosures — Reclassification of
financial assets

These HKFRS developments have had no material impact
on the Group’s financial statements as either they were
consistent with accounting policies already adopted by the
Group or they were not relevant to the Group’s and the

Company’s operations.
The Group has not applied any new standard or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period (see note 33).
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2008  #; % ~FEENFA _H =+—H IF %

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2008 were property investment and
management, property development and construction, and

provision of horticultural services.

Turnover represents the rental income, proceeds from
sales of properties, revenue from provision of property
management services, revenue from provision of property
construction services and revenue from provision of
horticultural services. The amount of each significant
category of revenue recognised in turnover during the year

is as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

BEM

E-FEN\Ft=A=t—ALE
Y AEBZEIBEBAVERER
TIE M ETE RS R E R

i g

EEBEHASBA REWMEZME
B REREDMEEERB 2K
@ REREWMERERSE 2 KEm &
RERHEERS 2 Wi - FARE
(¥ERACE —ERWAERZEH
NN

2008 2007
—EBEENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiExT FAT
Gross rentals from investment RERERHEMMEZ HEERE 1,612 13,455
and other properties
Gross proceeds from properties sold KRB B L&Y E 2 TS RIERE 43,128 12,107
Revenue from provision of property RERPEDEE B IR < Wm 289 331
management services
Revenue from provision of property REREMEREERS 2 WS = 137
construction services
Revenue from provision of R EREEERS 2 W 3,504 3,309
horticultural services
48,533 29,339
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

4. OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 4. JouBeE B oA

2008 2007
ZEENE —TTLHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FHET

Other revenue Hithzs

Interest income FEMA
- banks —RTT 16 98
— others —EAftb 6 39
22 137
Others At 131 165
153 302

Other net income HAbWg A FEE

Gain on disposal of fixed assets & BT B E 2 e - 35
Revaluation (losses)/gains on buildings BFEH(BR), K (9) 40
Net foreign exchange gain SN R F R 519 1,340
510 1,415
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

5. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 5. BRBLRTEA S OE)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREADER, (BB BEHR(GTA) -
(crediting):

2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FA&T
(a) Finance costs (a) RAERA
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEER S
wholly repayable within five years ARAFANEEESR 3,470 18,153
Interest on loan from a fellow subsidiary K& —ERE XMW B A7)
ZERZHE - 2
Total interest expense on financial R AFEFABR
liabilities not at fair value ZEEAEZE
through profit or loss Fisz 4858 3,470 18,155

Less: Interest expense capitalised into & : ZEFWERNERL

properties under development* ZFBRAE* (3,291) (4,665)
179 13,490
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 0.99%-4.47% * EERATIAFER0IO% EL44T%(ZEE
(2007: 3.59%—6.41%) per annum. £ 1 359% E6.41%) FIABARIL -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

5. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 5. BRBEwdAOid) (47)
(CONTINUED)
2008 2007
—EENE s
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn FEn
(b)  Staff costs (including (b) EIRK(BEEEHE)
directors’ remuneration)
Contributions to defined contribution RERKGE
retirement plan (note 22) R (7 22) 30 259
Salaries, wages and other benefits ¢ TEREMER 2,881 13,364
2,911 13,623
2008 2007
“EETNE g
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin FEL
(c)  Otheritems (c) HtEE
Amortisation of land lease premium METHBREHE 12 12
Depreciation of fixed assets ETEENE 1,136 1,058
Auditors' remuneration (-Gl
- audit services —BGRE 463 629
~ tax services —~RBRE 49 39
- other services —H iR 67 402
Operating lease charges: BEMOESL
minimum lease payments RIERAOMFH
— hire of plant and machinery —THREE R 9 9
— hire of other assets (including -HREMmEE
property rentals) (BENERS) 2,631 2,634
Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts RERAESE
— trade debtors -EWE 5508 - 97
Share of an associate's taxation ElEBEARIRIE - 6,737
Rentals received and receivable REERER
from investment and HipmEe kR
other properties less direct outgoings of Yz A HERSH
HK$ 1,149,000 1,149,000 7T
(2007: HK$3,738,000) (ZZZ+F:3738,00057L) (463) (9,717)
Cost of inventories (note 17(c)) FERA (M3E17(00) 41,638 12,505
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

INCOME TAX 6. Pififi
a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement a)  EABARRNZBLER
represents:
2008 2007
—ZENE ZETLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAEL
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax REABIE - BEBREH
Under-provision in respect BEFERE
of prior years N - (8)
Current tax - Singapore Income Tax  ZH3%{18 — # bk Fri5 i
Provision for the year REGEE (287) -
Deferred tax ELEHIE
Origination and reversal of ENERIEER
temporary differences [B] 5 5,767 (1,013)
Effect on deferred tax balacnes at R—H—BBRE
1 January resulting from REBERETIR
a change in tax rate -2 25 -
Income tax credit/{expense) FrisRiRE /(%) 5,505 (1,021)

In February 2008, the Hong Kong Government
announced a decrease in the Profits Tax rate from
17.5% to 16.5% applicable to the Group's operations
in Hong Kong as from the year ended 31 December
2008. This decrease is taken into account in the
preparation of the Group's and the Company's 2008
financial statements. However, no provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December
2008 and 2007 has been made as the Group has no
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for
the year.

The provision for Singapore Income Tax for 2008
is calculated at 18% (2007: 18%) of the normal
chargeable income.

RZZEZNF_F EBRF
EMBERE_ZTENFT A
=t—BLEFER  BREHHK
EH17.5% AME16.5% * B
MEBEBRARAEBEURELZE
BE ABEFRRBEARE
BERARRZ BB N\FHB®R
KRBT EBEN © AT BRAE
SEBE_ZTN\FR_TTL
FTZA=1T—HLFELER
BREELMFHERTOEN o Bt
W EAEHF ARG o

“ETEN\FEHIEEHEEE
TEAFEEEREERERAZ
18% (ZZT+4F  18% )+:tHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

6. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 6. Pifesi (4)
b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting b) R B A S B B S B
profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates: AubaA, Ofsda) Bk -
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREL AT R, (E18) 34,290 (311,249)
Notional tax on (profit)/loss before BRI C&ER]) EEZ
taxation, calculated at the rates HENIE - REEER
applicable to profits in the BARNGF ZHETE
countries concerned (5,271) 54,459
Tax effect of non-deductible TR IR B R 2B
expenses ze (244) (57,331)
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERBPWA B E 12,317 701
Tax effect of unused tax losses KR ARBRIBEE
not recognised 2SR (2,054) (4,773)
Tax effect of prior years' tax losses ~ ANFEFFBEFE 2 FHIE
utilised this year BRI E 254 573
Tax effect of share of profit FE(L—REHE & A R a F
of an associate IR E - 4,925
Under-provision in prior years BAFERETR
- Hong Kong Profit Tax —BBNEH - (8)
Effect on deferred tax R—A—BaRBXE
balances at 1 January resulting FEEPRIET A S
from a change in tax rate Fa 25 -
Others Hith 478 433
Actual tax credit/(expense) ERFBERE, () 5,505 (1,021)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. HHEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 161 of RBEEBRATEOE 161 (REECES
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: T -
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement 2008
Directors’ in kind Discretionary scheme Total
fee e 28 bonuses contributions BN\
ek RENHE BETEAL  RAGTEMT Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TR FiET
Executive Directors: WTES:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick EiR - 458 - - 458
Cheong Kim Pong B - - - - -
Cheong Sim Eng BRE - - - - -

Independent non-executive directors: BV IFHITES

Kan Fook Yee Lk 100 - - - 100

Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic REH 100 - - - 100

Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BELLE 100 - - - 100

Non-executive directors: FRITEE

Lim Ghee =3 - - - - -

Cheong Hooi Kheng* EEH* - - - - -
300 458 - - 758
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. W4 ()
(CONTINUED)
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement 2007
Directors' inkind  Discretionary scheme Total
fee e R bonuses  contributions ZTTLE
ik RENNG BERA  EIRGEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FAL FHET FEL
Executive Directors: WIESE:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick &R - 1,113 - 7 1,120
Cheong Kim Pong EoE - 63 - - 63
Cheong Sim Eng BRE - 768 - 7 775
Independent non-executive directors: BV FFHTES
Kan Fook Yee LS 100 - - - 100
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic RE® 100 - - - 100
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BRI 100 - - - 100
Non-executive directors: FITES:
Lim Ghee & - 220 - - 220
Cheong Hooi Kheng * EEm- - 9% - 4 100
300 2,260 - 18 2,578
* Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng's directorship is alternate to Madam Lim * @FEEALTAMELTCBEEES -
Ghee.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the above

emoluments do not include the monetary value of the rent-

free accommodation provided to Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan,

Patrick, an executive director of the Company, through

a property owned by the Group. The monetary value of

such residential accommodation provided to this executive

director based on the tenancy agreements entered into by

the Group was HK$420,000.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
(2007: two) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in

note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

I B A L

hER&EHFMALH  —H(Z2F
FMB)RES  EEENMET
WE - HMUE(ZTET+F: =F)

B

other four (2007: three) individuals are as follows: ATz F@mEmT
2008 2007
—BENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Salaries and other emoluments e M E b 968 3,698
Compensation for loss of office MAEEERE 21 -
Discretionary bonuses EYIBTEAL = 570
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIfER 42 21
1,031 4,289

The emoluments of the four (2007: three) individuals with

the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

ME(—Z2TLF: Z2)&RSHHA
T2 HMEATHER -

2008 2007
—EENF TEELF
Number of Number of

individuals individuals
A8 N
Nil - HK$1,000,000 = —1,000,0007% 7T 4 1

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000

1,000,001 77T, — 1,500,000 77T
1,500,001 7 7T — 2,000,000 78 7T
2,000,001 # 7T — 2,500,000 7 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

9. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of HK$1,066,000 (2007:
HK$300,345,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company's profit

9. AR RN HEAN S i

ARAEGRFEEARIGGEEERERE
1,066,000 T2 BHE(ZT T F -
300,345,000 7T) - ZEBEERAR
BT R T ERIE o

bl RE R B AR A 2 SRR N

for the year: N
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt FET
Amount of consolidated loss ERARAF]
attributable to equity ISR NRIE 2
shareholders dealt with in the BB AEGEREESE
Company’s financial statements (1,066) (300,345)
Dividends from subsidiaries e B B BUF S
attributable to the profits ZEEHMBRRIRE
of the previous financial year, I B AT R BE A SR B
approved and paid during the year - 163,800
Company'’s loss for the year RATRAFEE 2 E518
(note 25(b)) (HI5E25(b)) (1,066) (136,545)
10. DIVIDEND 10. JBER
2008 2007
—EENFE —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Distribution in specie (note) W5k (MisE) - 1,731,047

Note: Pursuant to the group reorganization (the “Group Reorganization”) as
detailed in note 30 below, the Company distributed all of the ordinary

shares of HK$0.05 each held in the issued share capital of Hong Fok

Land International Limited (“HF Land"”), a company incorporated in

Bermuda with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company before 1 August 2007, in specie out of its credit arising from
the Company'’s retained profits and contributed surplus to the equity
shareholders of the Company whose names appeared on the Register

of Members of the Company at the close of business day on 25 July

2007 on a one for one basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

10. DIVIDEND (CONTINUED) 10 BB (%)
2007
—ETHF
HK$'000
FBT
Net assets of HF Land and Fr9 k2 HF Land &2 HKt B A R
its subsidiaries (THF Land £E 1) 2
(the “HF Land Group”) distributed: EEFE:
Fixed assets B3 1,759,008
Interest in an associate R—EEE AR 2 s 647,072
Pledged bank deposits BEBIRITIFK 671
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EUARIA 7,036
Inventories FE 12,500
Tax recoverable AR ERIE 73
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEEY 6,996
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAEIRIA (13,238)
Bank borrowings RITEE (430,700)
Amount due to a subsidiary JER AR T —FEM B AR 2 5KIE
of the Company (1,069)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIERE (251,790)
Deferred income EREWA (5,512)
Net assets distributed to the equity DIRFAREERFTBEAZ
shareholders of the Company BEFE (1,731,047)
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect EEEYDIRZE S
of the distribution in specie MHEFEE D AT
Cash and cash equivalents distributed FipkzRe RIRESEEY (6,996)
The directors of the Company do not recommend the ARREZTVTEZRAFEIRER
payment of a final dividend in respect of the year (2007: Nil). HRE(ZEZLF  F) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

a)

b)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$39,795,000
(2007: loss of HK$312,270,000) and the weighted
average number of 2,392,410,986 (2007:
1,869,671,260) ordinary shares in issue during the

year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same as basic
earnings/(loss) per share as the Company does not
have dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year
ended 31 December 2008 (2007: the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options for the year
ended 31 December 2007 would result in a decrease
in loss per share).
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11 HREN(EHE)

a)

b)

FIRIEAREA, Ok #)
BREARRAN, (EE) DB
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥

12. SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format
because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal

financial reporting.

Business segments
The Group comprises the following main business

segments:

Property investment and management: the leasing of
properties to generate rental income and to gain from the
appreciation in the properties values in the long term, and

provision of building management services.
Property construction and development: the development,
construction and sale of properties, and project

management.

Horticultural services: the provision of horticultural services.

12.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

vig Lk

DEERTDRAREZ X5 R E D
B2 AEBDBEERBCEUALE
BzABRBHRETN  MEKER
TERFPA -

EZ g |
AEETF2RFATERSE

MEREREE  HEWRIARRE
ERAREREHMEAERE - &
RHBFEIRRS -

MEZERER: BR ZENMHEE
W AREEER -

B2 - REEBER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. Zr3ihdi (4)
Business segments (continued) 3 Vg Ei))
Property Property
investment construction Horticuftural Inter-segment
and management  and development services elimination Unallocated Consolidated
DERERER  WEEERER B2 REA R it B &4

008 207 208 207 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 207 208 07
ZERNE TR0 CRBNE JE%0F TBERNE CIRCE CRRNE TS0 CRENE JITE CRRNF CI5tE
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00 HKSO00  HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKSO00 HKSO00 HKSO00  HKS000
T TEr T TR TAm A Thr TEr TR T TEn  TEn

Revenue from exteralcustomers HIENER bR 20 1301 MM 12919 3504 3309 - - - - B3 13
Inter-segment revenue MEAE B e - 00 645 N5 9 6 (6482 (20831) '] - - -
Other revenug from extemal customers ReanzPEblE § Kl 3 9 3 5 - - 2 m 1w
Total E 27 13561 51204 3333 3516 330 (6482) (20831) 130 100 48665 29504
Segment result pLE 74508 20970 (20,955) 19,954 691 178 (6482) (20831 (13314) (5190 34448 (4919
Unallocated operating income and expenses FOREEWARERL AW
Profifloss] fiom operations e/ (BB U4 (4782
Finence costs AR (179 (13490)
Shere of profit of an associate ElE-EBELT - B - - - - - - - - - B
Impiment loss on goodil EERREE - - - B - - - - - - - B
Income tax H&H 5505 (1.021)
Profifloss for the year KEE /(6 39795 (312210)
Depreciation and amortisaton ERFERER
forthe year - 9% 3 8 6 6
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. 23 (4)
Business segments (continued) 0543 38 (&)
Property Property
investment construction
and management and development  Horticultural services Consolidated
NERERER WERERER BERE &a

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“ERN\E CTTLF SERNF CTTLF SRRNF CTTLF SRR CTEA
HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000 HKS000 ~ HKS'000 HKS000 — HKS'000  HKS'000
TEr TRt TEr TET TEx TEr  TER  TEn

Segment assets PEEE 355,646 273,624 975711 167,376 973 1,005 454,190 442,005
Unallocated assets APREE 6659 7974
Total assets GRE 460,849 449979
Segment liabilties nEER 128409 124911 7,95 40,144 9% 221 136300 165276
Unallocated liabilities FAEER 4765 4,05
Total liabilities BgR 141,065 169,330
Capital expenditure RERERHY

incurred during the

year 6,499 23,065 29 451508 8 4

Annual Report 2008 &% J\4F4EH 89



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. Z8idH (4)
Geographical segments b it 23 35
In presenting information on the basis of geographical RiginE 5B 25 ERE - HENR
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical DIEEPHE S  DHEEERAR
location of customers. Segment assets and capital AR EEMmE D8 -

expenditure are based on the geographical location of the

assets.
Hong Kong Singapore Total
E% g EEH)
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEN\F TR ZBEN\F —ITtF BB\ —TTtF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn FHL TET FEL T FET
Revenue from external HTHHNER
customers 2 3,793 16,557 44,740 12,782 48,533 29,339
Other revenue from REHIEP
external customers ZE Mz 121 153 1 12 132 165
Segment assets NEEE 363,433 282,758 97,416 167,221 460,849 449,979
Capital expenditure incured ~ AER
during the year ZBRRY 8,076 23,276 29 451,508 8,105 474,784
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS 13. [ ¥
a)  The Group a) AN
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Furniture, use under
Buildings equipment Property  operating
held for own  and other held for leases Total
use carried fixed assets future ARELE fixed
atfairvalue Al k1 Investment development H#34ER assets

NATEIIEC  REf  Subtotal  propety PR BEELH BEREE
HFERRT  EREE NE REME BR2IE 2EE I
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEn  TEx  TER  TEn  TEx  TER  T#x

Cost or valuation: REREE
At 1 January 2007 R=ZZ+5-A-H 400 13,551 13,951 1,994,320 183,400 600 2,192,271
Exchange adjustments B X A% - 74 74 - - - 74
Additions NE

— through acquisition of subsidiaries ~ —BBREHEA] - 642 642 - - - 642

- others —Hit - 313 313 22,980 - - 23,293
Disposal HE - (479) (479) - - - (479)
Distribution in specie ENHR - (9,269) (9,269) (1,758,153)  (183,400) - (1,950,822)
Surplus on revaluation BfhRH 40 - 40 - - - 40
Less: elimination of W REEYH

accumulated

depreciation (10) - (10) - - - (10)
Fair value adjustment ATERR - - - 14,173 - - 14173
At 31 December 2007 RZERLE

tAZt-R WA SR M - 60 75
Representing: HER
Cost [R1E - 4,832 4,832 - - 600 5,432
Valuation - 2007 HE-ZF5LF 430 - 430 273320 - - 273750
430 4,832 5,262 273,320 - 600 279,182

At 1 January 2008 R=ZF\-H-H 430 4,832 5,262 273,320 - 600 279,182
Exchange adjustments [E 5 5% - 7) 7 - - - ]
Additions AE - 1,606 1,606 6,499 - - 8,105
Disposal & - 67) (67) - - - (67)
Deficit on revaluation BihE4 (9 - 9) - - - 9
Less: elimination of W REREYH

accumulated

depreciation (11) - (1) - - - (1)
Fair value adjustment ATERR - - - 75,501 - - 75,501
At 31 December 2008 RZEEN\E

TIAET-R Mo 6364 6774 330 . T 600 362694 _
Representing: HER
Cost [R{E - 6,364 6,364 - - 600 6,964
Valuation - 2008 BE-=2T\E 410 - 410 365320 - - 355,730
410 6,364 6,774 365,320 - 600 362,694
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. Bl ¥ (4)

a)  The Group (continued) a)  AEE (4)
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Furniture, use under
Buildings equipment Property  operating
held forown  and other held for leases Total
use carried fixed assets future RRELE fixed
atfairvalue il - Rf5 Investment development R4V /EH assets
UAFESIRZ REf  Subtotal  property #{ER% BEELH  EEEE
BERRET BEREE Nt RENE BENEF 2 BE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TAn Thx TEn TERL TAn Thx TEn
Accumulated depreciation: ZRENE:
At 1 January 2007 R=ZFt5-A-R - 9,266 9,266 - 183,400 136 192,802
Exchange adjustments B X FE - 42 1Y) - - - 4
Charge for the year REERH 10 1,048 1,058 - - 12 1,070
Distribution in specie ENAK - (8414) (8414) - (183,400) - (191814)
Written back on disposal HERER - (356) (356) - - - (356)
Elimination on revaluation EffFEE (10) - (10) - - - (10)
At 31 December 2007 RZEELE
tAstR L L R S
At 1 January 2008 R=ZF\5—-A—-H - 1,586 1,586 - - 148 1,734
Exchange adjustments EREE - 8) ®) - - - )
Charge for the year REERH 11 1,125 1,136 - - 12 1,148
Written back on disposal HERER - (45) (45) - - - (45)
Elimination on revaluation BRI (1) - (11) - - - (11)
At 31 December 2008 RZEEN\F
TEAETR T 2056 2898 - ... Tl 1602818 __
Net book value: BRERE -
At 31 December 2008 WZZTNE
+-A=t-H 410 3,706 4116 365,320 - 440 359,876
At 31 December 2007 RZZELE
+-A=t-H 430 3,246 3,676 273,320 - 452 277,448
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

a)

All investment properties of the Group were revalued
as at 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 at
their open market value by reference to recent market
transactions of comparable properties. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of Surveyors,
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (2007: CB Richard
Ellis Limited), who have among their staff members
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of property

being valued.

The buildings held by the Group for own use were
revalued as at 31 December 2008 and 31 December
2007 at their open market value by reference to recent
market transactions of comparable properties. The
valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
Surveyors, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited (2007:
CB Richard Ellis Limited), who have among their staff
members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category of

property being valued.

The revaluation deficit of HK$9,000 (2007: surplus
of HK$40,000) has been transferred to the income

statement of the Group.

Had these buildings held for own use been carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been HK$512,000 (2007:
HK$531,000).

13, [ % A (4)

a)

RZZBEZENF+Z_A=+—AK
—ET+F+A=+—H" K
SEFMAEREMELETEN - &
HAREZ ARTEFELLZE
AL 2 RIS 51T ©
HERBASMEERITER
AR ZZETLF  HHRIEBA
BRAR) (REEBREBAE

MEgErgtsBIIWHURN
FribEy S 2t R R A 8 2
KBS ) AT ©

ﬁﬁ@%%%ﬁﬁéﬁ B
E&ﬁ%ZL%mﬁ%Eﬂ%%
AR Z TS HET -
HERBLISMEBRABITAR
RA(ZZBTLF : HHREML
BRAR) (REEBREENE
MEggRetz8TWHER
PRt EMELE RERIEEIEZ
5 AT -

EEEA9,00EFT(ZEZ £
£ A$R40,000787T) BE AN
L@z WK -

W& EHIEE BEBFRRAR
E2HFEINNE EEEAEK
£512,0008 T(Z T T+ F:
531,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IF %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA ICATH)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. Bl ¥ (4)
c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as c) MEREFEIWHET :
follows:
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FHET
In Hong Kong R EE
- long leases —RHEEE 355,000 273,000
— medium-term leases —HHHE 1,170 1,202
356,170 274,202
Representing: HER
Buildings held for own use AR FESIER 2 FE
carried at fair value BRETF 410 430
Investment property EME 355,320 273,320
Interests in leasehold land IR ST KFEE
held for own use under EREE T s
operating leases 440 452
356,170 274,202
d  Included in investment property in the d RIZZENF+ZA=+—H7F|

consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2008 is an investment property of approximately
HK$355,000,000 (2007: HK$273,000,000) under the

redevelopment.

e) As at 31 December 2008, an investment property
with a carrying amount of HK$355,000,000 (2007:
HK$273,000,000) were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s bank borrowings, details of which are set out

in note 21.
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RZZZENFE+=—A=+—8"
5F M & 355,000,000 7L ( = &
T4 1 273,000,000 70) 2%
BEMECTHER  ERFREER
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #; % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICq]H)

14. GOODWILL 14. w2
The Group
rEE
HK$'000
FBT
Cost: B
Additions arising from acquisition ARBE_ZTTtF+_A=+—HIEFENRN
of subsidiaries (note 30) BB AR (FIsE30) MEEZAE
during the year ended
31 December 2007 321,122
Accumulated impairment losses: ZFHREEE :
Impairment loss for the year BE_ZT+HHF+_A=+—HILFE
ended 31 December 2007 BB (321,122)
Carrying amount: BRTEIME
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEZNF+-_A=1+—H -
At 31 December 2007 RIEZTLF+_A=1+—H -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA —H =+—H IF &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14.

(LU TTtHE)

GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

On 1 August 2007, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Goldease Investments Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “"Goldease Group”) at a
consideration of HK$451,491,000, of which HK$23,991,000
was settled by cash and the remaining balance was settled
by the issue of 900 million new shares of the Company
to Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC"), which was the
controlling shareholder holding an approximately 40.4%
interest in the Company before 1 August 2007 and which
became the ultimate holding company of the Company on 1
August 2007. Further details of this acquisition are set out in
note 30.

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arose
from the acquisition of the Goldease Group. The Goldease
Group's operating business is property development in the

Republic of Singapore.

Goodwill acquired has been allocated to the cash generating
unit ("CGU") of the Goldease Group. The recoverable
amount of the CGU is determined based on net assets’ fair
value of the Goldease Group. The net assets of the Goldease
Group mainly consist of properties, which fair values are
determined at their open market value by reference to
recent market transactions of comparable properties.
Due to the fact that such goodwill arose principally as a
result of the unexpected fluctuation in the share price of
the Company’s shares at the date of acquisition and, by
reference to the HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”, the
closing price of the Company’s shares on that day was used
as a proxy for the fair price of the Company’s 900 million
new shares for the purpose of calculating the goodwill
arising from the acquisition of the Goldease Group, the net
assets’ fair value of the Goldease Group is lower than the
carrying amount of CGU and accordingly, an impairment loss
of HK$321,122,000 was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2007.

96 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

14.

i ()

RZZETLFNA—B AEBEKE
Goldease Investment Limited & H
B25E([Goldease (@ ]) 2 100% %
7 - R {8 A451,491,000/8 L E &
23,991,000 B LA R & 2T - RegrK
BB BREREEBRAT(IBEE
% 1)#£47900,000,000 & A A B FT A& D
ARSI BREERZ-ZZZLFN
A—RAIARFBARRTILAL0.4%
ZERBRITR-_ZEZ+FEN\A—H
BARARZHREER AT - B
TR 2 — B RFIEERMIFES0 ©

Bl & A LA (44 Wl ) Z WAL Ok
HREBARMS AE DA KE
Goldease &£ B ME4% ° Goldease £
IS E TR ET NG AR E 2 W %
BR o

Frit g 2 BB E DB E Goldease £ E
CHeELBEN([REEELEM]) -
ReEEBM 2 EKSE DRI
Goldease kB EEFEQNTEE
7E ° Goldease RSB EEFEHEXEMR
MEMEK  EAFEDNIREEAAS
GEBEWRELYMEZFATSER
SET BHRAEREEFERERRT
REMKEB B2 A E B M E
o RIBBEBMBRERNEINR
[EBEM] ARAARMDRZBZH
8 J5 4% A 1 2K 22 §1900,000,000 fi%
kD zEEATFE  #EUGFEREK
BGoldease SBfTEELEZME - M
Goldease & B 2 BEFEAFEER
ReELBENZERE  BAit 82
—ETHF+_A=FT—HILFER
WA E K518 321,122,000 % 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #F —FEE/AF ZH ="1—HIFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. JAHE A " 2 B ¥
The Company
RAF]
2008 2007
= A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT TET
Unlisted shares, at cost RETHRD - JRE 1 1
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TRERFHIZEEASERE &
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of EXBEZWBRAGZER -
the Group.
Proportion of ownership interests
BERERLA
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation  of issued and effective Held by the Held by a
and operation  paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiary
Name of company TMELR ERIRER TEEZ NS B-EHE Principal activity
NAER EEMY A Bnfks ] NARE IEEH
Arundel Trading Pte Ltd.*  The Republic 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property development
of Singapore S$1 each NELR
("Singapore”)  2EEBREEIHILL
Gl Easilles Bk
(IFmi )
Cheung Kee Garden Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding and
KL EEBRAT &b HK$1 each and provision of
450,000 non-voting horticultural services
deferred shares RARR R
of HK$1 each BERH%
100 B REE BT
LR % 450,000
BREE1 BT
ERFEELR
Donwin Property Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property investment
RRESXERAA Bl HK$1 each NERE
2EEREE AT LRk
Firth Enterprises Pte Ltd.*  Singapore 2 ordinary shares of S$1 each 100% - 100% Property development
Y 2REREEIRTIER NEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. AW A W2 B (8)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interests
BRERRLA
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation  of issued and effective Held by the Held by a
and operation  paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary
Name of company FMERLR ERETRARE FEEZ NG H-ENE Principal activity
DEER 2 Rz BikER BB G TEEH
Fort Property Management  Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Provision of
Limited &5 HK$1 each management services
BENKERARAA 2REREE VAT LRk REERRS
Goldease Investments British Virgin 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited* Islands 1REE1ET SRR RERR
RERLES
Hong Fok Development Singapore 1,000,000 ordinary 100% - 100% Property development
(Newton) Pte. Ltd.* I shares of S$1 each NEER
1,000,000 R EREE 15T
LERER
Sui Chong Finance Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Provision of financing and
Limited i HK$10 each managment services
mERBERAA QREREE 0BT EBR RERE RERRY
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property investment
(H.K.) Limited &R HK$10 each ES
REER (B8 ERAT AREREE 0BT EER
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Provision of property
Resources Limited BE of HK$1 each management and
HEERERERAF 1,000 RERAEE 1 AT project management
LR services
REMFERR
BEEERE
Super Homes Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 ~ 100% - 100% Property Investment
i each and 100 non-voting mERE
deferred shares of HK$0.3
gach
100BEREE BT
LERR100BREHREE
03B BREERER
Vision Capital Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding
Bl HK$1 each REER

REREE VAT EER
* Audited by other auditor
* BH BRI EZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

16. OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL 16. U Al I 8 1) 4 ik

ASSETS

The Group

rEE
2008 2007
—2I\F -—TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiExT T
Available-for-sale unlisted equity BAFEAHEERET

securities at fair value IRARE S 1,610 1,990

Loan to a fellow subsidiary (note (i) HBr— FEJH?MT%

B (MHEE () - 54

Loan receivable (note (ii) e S A(ﬁﬁuf (i) - 490

1,610 2,534

Note: BisE -

(i) Loan to a fellow subsidiary was unsecured, non-interest-bearing and (i) LY —HRRWIEARZERIDER
not repayable within one year. The loan was settled in full during the ?ﬁ TEHFEMBAR—FREE - #HE
year ended 31 December 2008. —ET)\F+ZA=F+—BLFER -

ZEREEHLEH -

(ii) Loan receivable from a director of a subsidiary: (i) U —FEMBARIEEZER
Name of borrower Mr. Tsui Yeung Kun, Andrew BRAE BEREE
Position Director of a subsidiary B -HHEAAZES
Terms of the loan BRZER

- duration and repayment terms Repayment on 31 August 2010 - BB REEGR RZZ2-%
NA=T-BEE
- loan amount HK$990,000 -E5eR 90,0007
- interest rate 2% per annum over Hong Kong - BARIRERS
Interbank Offered Rate nEx)E
- security None -EAR i

Balance of the loan

-at 1 January 2007 HK$990,000 990,007
- at 31 December 2007 and
1 January 2008 HK$490,000 490,0007%
- at 31 December 2008 - -
Maximum balance outstanding
- during 2008 HK$490,000 490,007
~ during 2007 HK$990,000 990,000 37
There was no amount due but unpaid, nor any provision R-EENER-_EBE+E+—- A
made against the principal amount of or interest on this loan =+—H: WEHRHAI N ZHIE
at 31 December 2008 and 2007. The loan receivable was MERHEER Y ASEEREF B
settled in full during the year ended 31 December 2008. A {a] B4 o @ziizf\%}\EJr — A
=T HIEFEARA - EREREEH

ml:uéZ °
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

17. INVENTORIES

17. 1

a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet a) JAREEEBEBERAZHFER

comprise: 7=

2008 2007

—EBEENFE —TTHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Plants =k 243 260

Properties held for sale FIER S 94,288 160,705

94,531 160,965

All of the inventories are expected to be recovered

within one year.

At 31 December 2008, inventories of HK$94,288,000

(2007 : Nil) were carried at fair value less cost to sell.

b)  The analysis of carrying value of properties held for

sale is as follows:

BZEFERAFR —FAK
m o

R-TENF+=A=+—8-
594,288,000 8 L(—FT+
G m)UAFEBBEREN
BE o

BHELEME 2 REES T
™

2008 2007
—EBEENFE —TTHHF
HK$000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
Outside Hong Kong BB
— Freehold — KA 94,288 160,705
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

17. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 17. f#1 (&0)
c)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised c) WRARIZEFEESBETH
as an expense is as follows: N
Plants Properties Total
R E @t
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

“RRN\F CTERLF ZRRN\F CTRLF ZRR\F CTELF
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TR AL TER TR

Carryingamountof ~ BEHE

inventories sold & 513 511 41,125 11,994 41,638 12,505
Write-down of FEMA

inventories - - 25,908 - 25,908 -

513 511 67,033 11,9% 67,546 12.505
d) As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, certain of the d RZZFEZENFERZZTZELF+Z
Group's properties held for sale were pledged as A=+—8  RA&EBEETFEH
collateral for the Group’s bank borrowings, details of EZWMEHETER  ERASE
which are set out in note 21(ii). ERTEEZERR - FES A

KT FE21() °

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B By B - fib M SR 35
The Group The Company
EE RAT]

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —ZETAF —ZEENEFE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET FBT FHET

Amount due from a FEW — R B A &
subsidiary ZIRER - - 207,567 209,379
Trade debtors JEWE S ER IR 498 506 = -
Other debtors H U R 5k 321 1,464 = -
Loans and receivables B ERFIE 819 1,970 207,567 209,379

Deposits and e RIBRR

prepayments 1,522 1,559 372 368
2,341 3,529 207,939 209,747
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. BB K U A RO ()

(CONTINUED)

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, non- JEUL — R BT 8 A B 2 R R T K 4R -

interest-bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment. Tet R B EEE R -

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FrE8 5 RAMEWKIRIE - BHER

recovered or recognised as expense within one year. —FAMEERARE o

(a) Ageing analysis (a) R H
Included in trade and other receivables are trade RE S RAMEWIRIEA - UK
debtors (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful B SRR (R RERMERE)
debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the REE R ZRESTOT -

balance sheet date:

The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiExT FAT
Within 1 month —fEART 342 366
1 to 3 months —Z={@A 150 139
More than 3 months but less BiE=1EA
than 12 months B R+—EA 6 1
498 506
The Group's credit policy is set out in note 26(a). REBZEERREESHNWF

26(a) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B 5 B A M BORR ()

(CONTINUED)

(b) Impairment of trade debtors (b)  MEBCR B Mk 2 WAL
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are EREWE SRR ZREERETD
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group EABERRLA - BRIEREEEF
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in AU (S G B < BB 2 i R IR A1
which case the impairment loss is written off against Al - RILER T REBEE
trade debtors directly (see note 1())(i)). BEREWE 5 R 3h #sy (R

Z10)0) ©
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FRARK(BREFEREEBEE
during the year, including both specific and collective MEh ) B2 BEn T

loss components, is as follows:

The Group
rEE

2008 2007
—EBENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
At 1 January n—H—H - -
Impairment loss recognised EHERZRBEBE - 97
Uncollectible amounts written off [ € s NI E B - (97)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(¢) Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

are as follows:

18. B 5) B 30l MBI X (480)

(©

ARV WA 2 HEWBCR S R
1@ B AR RN TR E 2 &
BHRKZIREDHIAT

The Group
rEH

2008 2007
—BEENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Neither past due nor impaired BEAR@HTARRE 342 366
Less than 1 month past due BaE LR —EA 142 122
More than 1 month past due 2R —EA 14 18
156 140
498 506

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a range of customers for whom there was no

recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have
a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. BeRBE&ESEY
The Group The Company
rEE Vi UNE|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZEELEF —EENFE —ETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TiExT FHET THERT TET
Deposits with banks and ~ 7FHUARETT R
other financial Hih & pitts
institutions ZTER 2,489 5,494 6 7
Cash on hand FEIRS 1 1 — -

2,490 5,495 6 7
Pledged bank deposits HHRTEE
for bank borrowings 2RI (4) (10) - -
Cash and cash equivalents MR EEBERNM
in the balance sheetsand AR EFRER

the consolidated cash ZHReRE
flow statement ZEY 2,486 5,485 6 7
At 31 December 2008, bank balances carry interest at RZZEZENF+ZA=+T—HZHET
market rates which range from 0.00% to 0.01% (2007: EFEENTFR0.00%E001% (==
0.00% to 1.50%). At 31 December 2008, pledged bank ZLF :0.00% E1.50%) ZTHHE
deposits carry interest rate of 0.00% (2007: 0.00% to HE R EENFF+_A=+—H
0.25%). The pledged bank deposits will be released upon 2 EHEIRIRITIFFHIZ0.00% (ZTZ+
the settlement of the relevant bank borrowings. F:0.00%E0.25%) ZFKRAE - B
HIFRITF RSN BERRITEEERER
15381
Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged to EEFRITHFRIEEER FIRITAE
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The RAEBEFEZBITREZGFENR B
pledged bank deposits have been pledged to secure long- ERBITFR D EERAERTAE
term borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current B ARSI AERDEE -
assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. B 5 B JC Al HEA MR I
The Group The Company
rEE NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF —2EN\F ZETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TAT TERT THT
Trade creditors JEN B 28R 99 311 - -
Other creditors and HAh fETERFR
accrued charges K IERTRY 4,487 5,151 517 1,260
Amount due to the ultimate & &AL
holding company NSIE ¢
(note 29(b)) (BfEE29(b)) 152 6 = -
Amount due to a related  JERf—FEREIE R A]
company (note 29(b)) FRIB (FE29(b)) 2,997 2,489 = -
Financial liabilities g SR
measured at amortised 5I|BR 2 B 7
cost aff 7,735 7,957 517 1,260
Retentions payable JEHMRE A 1,847 1,809 = -
Forward sales deposits Bl EEER 2
and instalments received &7 ERE R - 1,302 = -
Deposits received Bz 355 489 = -
9,937 11,557 517 1,260
All of the trade and other payables, apart from the retentions BREMREBRIEN MBEESREM
payable, are expected to be settled within one year. JEBRIETERTR —F RS -
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with RESRHEMENEKRERN BNES
the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date: RIEREER 2RO
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFHET
Within 1 month —fEART 32 108
After 1 month but within 3 months —EAABETBB=(EA 37 5
After 3 months but within 6 months =R &ETERIEA 6 20
After 6 months but within 12 months NEAEBESER T ZEA - 34
Over 1 year —F AL 24 144
99 311
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

21. BANK BORROWINGS 21. ST R
At 31 December 2008, the bank borrowings were repayable RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H " #17
as follows: BEEAEN AT HEEE
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EBEENE —TTHEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Within 1 year or on demand as R—FAFNREREEER
classified under current liabilities SBEARBAE) 235 -
After 1 year but within 2 years —F R BT RBIBRNFE 128,248 -
After 2 years but within 5 years MFERB TN BBRF 2,058 150,829
After 5 years AFLAE - -
After 1 year and classified under —F
non-current liabilities (BB AEREDERE) 130,306 150,829
130,541 150,829
At 31 December 2008, the bank borrowings were secured RZEZENF+_A=+—H ' E1T
as follows: BENERBEROT
The Group
REE
2008 2007
—EBEENFE —TTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Bank loan RITER
- Secured —FHEH 129,617 150,829
— Unsecured — I 924 -
130,541 150,829
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % 4
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21.

FENAE A ZH = A H I

(LU L aTHE)

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2008, the bank facilities of certain

subsidiaries were secured by:

i)

iv)

vi)

vii)

viii)

fixed charges over an investment property of the
Group situated in Hong Kong with carrying value of
HK$355,000,000 (2007: HK$273,000,000);

fixed charges over certain of the Group’'s properties
situated in Singapore with an aggregate carrying value
of HK$73,578,000 (2007: HK$129,919,000);

assignment of insurance, sale and rental proceeds of
the aforementioned properties situated in Hong Kong
and Singapore;

charges over certain of the Group’s bank deposits of
HK$4,000 (2007: HK$10,000);

subordination and assignment of intra-group
and shareholders’ loans to certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group in favour of the banks;

floating charges over the assets of Super Homes
Limited ("SHL"), a subsidiary of the Group;
share mortgages over the entire issued share capital of

SHL; and

corporate guarantees given by the Company.
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22.

Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2008, the effective interest rates for the
floating rate bank borrowings range from 1.09% to 5%
(2007: 3.7% to 4.47 %) per annum.

Except for bank borrowings of HK$1,617,000 (2007:
HK$26,829,000) denominated in Singapore dollars, all the
remaining bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

The bank borrowings are floating rate borrowings which
carry interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR") plus 0.79% or Hong Kong Dollars Prime
Lending Rate (2007: HIBOR plus 0.79%) except for the
bank borrowings denominated in Singapore Dollars which
carry interest at Lender’'s Cost of Funds plus 1.5% (2007:
Lender’s Cost of Funds plus 1.35%).

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“"MPF Scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

21.

22.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

23. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 23. DBy XA Z HERR B AR 5

TRANSACTIONS

ApRBRE-—BAR-_ZET_FMA
THBERMZBRERTSE - Bk K
NREZERENBEFASEHRER
(BREAEEEFARARZES)ENE
PR (R HAE) AR A DB
BEREERLERAERE ETZR

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 15 April 2002 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, to take up options at nil consideration to
subscribe for shares of the Company. The options vest from
the date of grant and are then exercisable within a period of TEZHRAR TIE - 2HERE
not more than ten years. Each option gives the holder the BTIRAARB-RAQRIEARZ
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company. x| -

The number and weighted average exercise price of share FEREZ BB RN TEENT
options are as follows:

2008 2007
—ZEENE —ZETAF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price Number of price Number of
RS options hn#EFg options
TEE BREHE 1T ERERE
‘000 ‘000
) T
Outstanding at the
beginning of the year FHRITE - = HK$0.377 53,040
0.377 7T
Cancelled during the year FRNEH - - HK$0.377 (53,040)
0.377 87T
Outstanding at the end
of the year FARRITE - - - -
Exercisable at the end
of the year FRAITE - - - -

The options outstanding at 1 January 2007 had an exercise
price of HK$0.377 and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 5.3 years.

By a resolution passed at the meeting of the board of
directors of the Company held on 20 June 2007, all of the
options outstanding at 18 June 2007 were cancelled.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 24. HEAMKNZ PGB
a) Income tax in the consolidated balance sheet a) HEEEABERAZERIE
represents:
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Tax recoverable for the payment of X E B SH

provisional Hong Kong Profits Tax 2 A] Y [al F 18 1 8
Balance of Singapore Income ARE ZHT NI PSR A5
Tax provision for the year i 504 856
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

24. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 24, BEREAMEKNZIIABE(E)

(CONTINUED)

O Z BB AT
FABEEABRKRACHRELTN
HABEZRD LFERNEBMT

b)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised: b)
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements

during the year are as follows:

The Group
A%

Fair value
adjustment for
Revaluation properties

of held for sale

investment BELE
property ¥EZAFE Total
REMEER AE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET AT TaERr
Deferred tax arising from: THEBEEEY
EIERIE -
At 1 January 2007 RZEZT+F—A—H 250,700 - 250,700
Through acquisition of BRI
subsidiaries MEAT - 5,688 5,688
Distribution in specie EWDIK (251,790) - (251,790)
Exchange alignment b R - 275 275
Charged/(credited) to profit BamENINGR
or loss (FtA) 1,530 (517) 1,013
At 31 December 2007 RZZTLF
+ZA=+—A 440 5,346 5,786
At 1 January 2008 RZZENF—HA—H 440 5,346 5,786
Exchange alignment JER AR - 89 89
Credited to profit or loss BREAEIA (415) (5,352) (5,767)
Effect on deferred tax Kn—A—A
balances at 1 January AR EE)
resulting from a change IR IR A 2R
in tax rate 258 (25) - (25)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZTTN\F
+-A=+—H - 83 83
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

24. HRAMRMNZPIB (8)

(CONTINUED)
b)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (Continued) b) CUHRZIBEEBHEAM : (&)
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Net deferred tax liabilities mEEEAERA
recognised on the consolidated R IRERE IR
balance sheet AfEFsE 83 5,786
¢)  Deferred tax assets not recognised ¢) AMERZERLBLIEEE
(i) The Group (i) ALEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out BEMT Q) FAE &R
in note 1(qg), at 31 December 2008, the Group has B RZTENF+=A
not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of =+—H AEBEWER
cumulative tax losses of HK$368,555,000 (2007: 368,555,000 L (ZEF
HK$357,252,000) as it is not probable that future +4 : 357,252,000 7T)
taxable profits against which the tax losses can ZREFGHIEBEBERREL
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax HEEE AAREAEMEC
jurisdiction and for the respective entity. The tax BEazEE R NEA
losses do not expire under current tax legislation. ERITIKNABEEERKE
R N LAVER TH B R R
He A BREBRITMBE
B ZEHEBBL R
(ii)  The Company (i) AL A

At 31 December 2008, the Company has
cumulative tax losses of HK$12,752,000 (2007:
HK$11,793,000) available for set-off against
future taxable profits for an unlimited period of
time. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such cumulative tax losses as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against
which the tax losses can be utilized will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and such
tax losses are subject to the agreement with the
tax authority.

RZZFEZENF+ A
=+—8 Aaa A #
8 R 2R FE BR B Om A 2
ERHBZFHEEEA
12,752,000 L (=TTt
F 111,793,000 7T) ° &
MZERFHIEBEER
RERIBEE  ARAEERE
B2 B R EEE KA
BE S A R PR B RR B s ) A
EFEBERE A B
ZEDEBEASGHBEE
BRE - FAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a)  The Group

(LU TTtHE)

25. EAS Bl i
ASE

a)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KDAREREARL
Capital Share-based
redemption compensation Minority
Share Share  reserve Contributed  reserve  Exchange  Fairvalue  Retained interests Total
capital  premium R suplis NRETH  reseve  reseve  profts Total S8 equity
Rt BOEE HERE 4ABS (HERE  ENRE LTERR  REEA g RREE  fRE
Note HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Wit TEn TR TEL  TEn  fEu TEn  fEn fEL TEr fEr fER
At1 January 2007 R-EREE-A-0 460 19873 m 6180% 8911 (102.892) 83 1087727 1884290 - 1884290
Echenge diferenceon ~ £EE9H
tansltonof fnencel ~~ MELE
sttemenisof overseas 1SR 2
subsidiries ERzE - - - - - 5570 - - 5,570 - 5570
Changeinfairvalieof T HE
avalableforsale HLTE
secuiies 59 - - - - - - 30 - 30 - 30
Share of movementsin  FEGEE
resenes o anassovigte  AAIEEEE) - - - - -6 5 - B0 -8
Cancelltionof shere.~~~ ZFSAREE
premium - (1%873) - 196873 - - - - - - -
Realiation ofreserve upon #EAIA R
dsvibutoninspece ~ BEREE - - - - - B 62 (102400 - - -
Shares issued SHENE
for aoquisiion k1
of subsidiaries i 45,000 - - 3850 - - - - 4T - 4750
Cancellaionof R
share options - - - - 8.911) - - 8911 - - -
Loss for te year ERFR - - - - - - - o B - B
Distibutoninspecie ~ EH2R 10 - - - [11974) - - - 633578 (1731,047) - (1731040
At31 December 2007 RZ3RtE
t2fz1-8 119620 - il - - 11876 60 148392 280649 - 280649
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 25. AR B Al ()

a)  The Group (Continued) a) AR (47)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FAARERAARR
Capital Share-based
redemption compensation Minority
Share Share reserve  Contributed reserve  Exchange  Fairvalue  Retained interests Total
capital ~ premium R qupls  MBRAEN  reseve  resenve profits Total 58 equity

Bh o BHEE  RERR  MABR  SBARRE ERER OVERE  REMA g RRER ER
HKSODD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSODD  HKSOD  HKSODD  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOD
TETL TER TR TER TR TER TR TER TER TR TER

At 1 January 2008 119,620 - 1 - - 11,876 640 14839 280,649 - 280,649
Exchange difference on

transitonof frenciel ~~ HEA

stetements of BlhiRL

overseas subsidares  EXEE - - - - - (280) - - (280 - (280
Chengesinfarvalie ~ TEEE

o avalableor EH0TE

sale securies b | - - - - - - (380) - (380) - (380)
Profit for the year EREA - - - - - - - 075 37% - 7%
At31 December

2008 tZA=+-A 119,620 - 1 - - 11,59 0 188,187 319,784 - 319,784
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 25. AR KAl ()

b)  The Company b) AR
Capital Share-hased
redemption compensation
Share Share reserve  Contributed reserve  Accumulated
capital  premium BAER surplus  BURAEAR losses Total

Bx DR BE  MARR  JRRE ZiER it
Note  HKSOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOD  HKSO00  HKS000
53 AR AR TR AR iR TR AR

At 1 January 2007 NI E-A-R 74,620 196,873 121 1,386,571 8,911 (18,509) 1,648,587
Cancellation of share options SRR - - - - (8911) 8911 -
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - - (136,545) (136,545)
Share issued for acquisition SENEL

of subsidiaries Eavai vl 45,000 - - 382,500 - - 427500
Cancelation of share premium ~ iEHREE - [196,873) - 196,873 - - -
Distribution in specie ENDR 10 - - - (1731,047) - - (1731,047)
At 31 December 2007 i 2y gl g 119,620 - 1] 24897 - (146,143) 2084%
At 1 January 2008 RIZEN\E-A-H 119,620 - 121 234,897 - (146,143) 2084%
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - [1,066) (1,066)
At31 December 2008 RoRENETAZT-H 119,620 - 1] 234897 - (147209 207429
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 25. AR B Al ()

¢)  Share capital ¢ Bk
i) Authorised and issued share capital i) BEERCETRE
2008 2007
—ZENE —TTEE
No. of shares  Nominal value No. of shares  Nominal value
RIDEE HE PR AE
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
Ti Fax Fhk FEL
Authorised: Py
Ordinary shares of SREE0.05
HK$0.05 each B LBk 3,000,000 150,000 3,000,000 150,000
Ordinary shares, issued and L@k BB
fully paid: RéR
At 1 January »—A—H 2,392,411 119,620 1,492,411 74,620
Shares issued for HKERB AR
acquisition of BB
subsidiaries - - 900,000 45,000
At 31 December B+=—A=1+—H 2,392,411 119,620 2,392,411 119,620
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to LTBRFEABEERD
receive dividends as declared from time to BERZKE  BEAR
time and are entitled to one vote per share at AlEgELERAE—FZR
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares ER-EEBRRYEERR
rank equally with regard to the Company's AR EEZRREE
residual assets. Fnld
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 25. AR KAl ()

¢)  Share capital (Continued) c) B (&)
ii)  Increase in authorised share capital i) A ERAR
By an ordinary resolution passed at the special EBR_ZZTLF LA
general meeting held on 25 July 2007, the Zt+HEBRTZERERR
Company's authorised ordinary share capital was Rl K& L@z TR
increased to HK$150,000,000 by the creation FRE O AQRRZETEE
of an additional 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares AR AN BRI B R A
of HK$0.05 each, ranking pari passu with the 1,000,000,000 & F X E &
existing ordinary shares of the Company in all 0.057%8 7T 2 & i I ifn 35 N
respects. %150,000,000%8 7T + %5
LRSS HHEEARRA
ZHEALTRREARSM
fir o
iii)  Shares issued for the acquisition of subsidiaries i) BRI A AT IR
On 1 August 2007, the Company issued R-ZZFZELFN\A—H"
900,000,000 new shares as part of the R F]#17900,000,0000%
consideration payable for the acquisition of R - 1ERA BB I
subsidiaries as set out in note 30. J& 2R (AT RE 30 Tt ) &

NREZ—#5 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % 4

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

d) Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

ii)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account
and capital redemption reserve is governed by

the Bermuda Companies Act.

By a special resolution passed at the special
general meeting held on 25 July 2007, the
entire amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company as at 25 July
2007 was cancelled. The credit arising from
the cancellation of share premium was applied
for the purpose of the distribution in specie as

disclosed in note 10.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal value of
the share capital issued by the Company and
the aggregate of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of the subsidiaries acquired.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the Company may make distributions
to its members out of contributed surplus in

certain circumstances.

FE/ A ZH = A HIEFRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. EAS Bl il (A1)
d)  BEER R

i)

i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

d)

e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

iii)

iv)

v)

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
represents the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of a subsidiary recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted

for share-based payments set out in note 1(p)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 1(t).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
securities held at the balance sheet date and
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting

policies set out in notes 1(f) and (j).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount

of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$87,688,000
(2007: HK$88,754,000).

120 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

25. EAS Bl il (1)
ol A T 0 (480

d)

e)

1i1)

iv)

v)

LUBRG 3112 45 (i

VAR 1 32 155 2 Tl 45 o6 4 T
LMEE 1 (p) (i1) B st A RS
5 RN 2 & 5T BUR 78
RZET—HNEBRRIE
B ARITE 2 BRIEER
shiEETEE 2 AFE -

TE S fif
EXFEESMAERRE
BN EBHBHRREEZ
PE ERE - i BIRME
1) FRE S ET BRI IE

L TAE R
RFEFEE ’a*ﬁ’\\i |
REZAHEEESQS
Bz R EEFE - 2
AR R () EZ & AR
BRIB o

N

+

S Vil At
RZZEZENF+ZA=+—8"
AN TEARBEREE A
#4858 587,688,000/8 L (=%
T4 1 88,754,000 7T) ©



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

f

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-capital
ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt as
total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables) less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital comprises all components of
equity.

During 2008, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2007, was to maintain the net debt-

to-capital ratio at below 60%.

25. EAS Bl il (A1)

f)

YR AL

REEEREARA s BZBETR
FEAREEREMEERBRELSE
AR - DEE 38 B E gk
MEZERRIREEEARES
SERRCHE - EERREE
i [B] 3 N 7% FL A 4 B A £ 75 2R

K

N

S o

REBEG KL E RS EAREEL
TRAIRER  AERSKRERE
BERATHREFE L ESEER

KR AFE AR R Z 458
KRS 2 FRIBAS F 18 - 30 A
BEIRFEZ BIEHEARBIELH

go

FE AL ZE FIEH — 1% - AEEB
FABEHERL R AREEERA
BRI - BUWAERZ EFF
BRAEL(BETRERRE
B B REMEMNEKERE)RE
ReRBEEEEBWAE - EXE
ERERAEK S ©

RZZBZNFAR  NEEZ K
BB FRFRE - TR
ERFEHER L FEN60% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

f)

25. EAS Bl il (1)

Capital management (Continued) ) EAREH(H)
The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2008 and RZEENFRZZTTLF+Z
2007 was as follows: A=+—HBzE%FEHERLL
KT
The Group The Company
rEE VNG|
Note 2008 2007 2008 2007
(i3 —EINF e o3 —EINE e el o3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT FHEL TBT THET
Current liabilties: AR -
Trade and other payables B REMEMNEE 20 9,937 11,557 517 1,260
Bank borrowings RITIEE 21 235 - = -
10,172 11,557 517 1,260
Non-current liabilities: FRBAE
Bank borrowings HBITIEE 21 130,306 150,829 = -
Loan from a fellow GE =V
subsidiary Rt 7 EX - 302 = -
Total debt B5BE 140,478 162,688 517 1,260
Less: Cash and cash B REREEE
equivalents EM 19 (2,486) (5,485) (6) (7)
Net debt BRFE 137,992 157,203 511 1,253
Capital BHER 25 319,784 280,649 207,429 208,495
Net debt-to-capital ratio EHFELHES
BALE 43% 56% 1% 1%

As imposed by a bank loan agreement between a bank
and a subsidiary of the Company, the Group is required
to maintain the ratio of “consolidated net total interest
bearing debts” to “consolidated tangible net worth”
not exceeding 80%. For the purpose of this capital
requirement, “consolidated net total interest bearing
debts” is defined as the aggregate of interest bearing
borrowings less the aggregate of cash and cash
equivalent balance of the Group and “consolidated
tangible net worth"” is defined as the aggregate of the
amount paid up or credited as paid up on the issued
share capital of the Company plus share premium,
retained earnings or reserves less the intangible assets
and minority interests of the Group.

Other than the above, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

a)

Financial risk factor

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
These risks are mitigated by the Group's financial
management policies and practices described below.

i) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables and cash at bank.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. The
Group grants a credit period of not more than
30 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 3 months overdue
are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

Cash is placed with financial institution with good
credit rating.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a number
of customers.

26. bR B AT B R A P

4 B8 1R K
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 26. ik bl B A B R A PH (1)
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)
a)  Financial risk factor (Continued) a)  A@EREEEK (4)
i) Credit risk (Continued) i) 17 B (#)
The maximum exposure to credit risk without TEREEF#FAE 2 EME
taking account of any collateral held is HamBERAT  mAREER
represented by the carrying amount of each B T A 0 Rk A AT Rk B B A
financial asset, after deducting any impairment EEHEH2HEECZLEK®E
allowance. Apart from that as disclosed in B - BRI st 28(b) FTIRFE &
Note 28(b), the Group does not provide any LASIN - 7K &8 3 3 f8% [m) 5] 57
guarantees to external third parties which would F = HRBERERD K
expose the Group or the Company to credit risk. FEAREBHIARAHFAR
=ERER

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the BEAE B 5 REAM
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade JEWREFIEA 28R
and other receivables are set out in note 18. GoiE—TEERRER

BAKE18 °

ii)  Liquidity risk i) BB
Individual operating entities within the Group are AEBRNERKEEE
responsible for their own cash management, BEREARAGZHEE
including the short-term investment of cash BREMNARRESE
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover ﬁﬂﬁﬂ?‘xé{& EEHMU
expected cash demands. The Group's policy is EREFR2F R &
to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and EHFT R AEBERE
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure MBESHZRRHEEBTMN
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash B ZIER - femER
and adequate committed lines of funding from HRETTReREBELEE
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity TOMBIBAEIRERH
requirements in the short and longer term. B MENEESHEE
HzRnEBEeFERK -

The following table details the remaining TRFMARERRARF
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date JeRMABEREER Z#
of the Group's and the Company's financial TAKHREE - HiRES
liabilities which are based on contractual HARFIMBeRE (BEFE
undiscounted cash flows (including interest ﬁﬁA%’U%‘J%EJrﬁZ%'J 21T
payments computed using contractual rates or, C S F g R =X - Al
if floating, based on rates at the balance sheet sz’/s‘mﬁ B2 FEFTHE) A
date) and the earliest date the Group and the MAREBE RAARA]ER
Company can be required to pay: EEz=FHHFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 26. ik bl B 4 B R A PE (B1)
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)
a)  Financial risk factor (Continued) a)  A@EBEEEK (4)
ii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) i) B E ()
The Group
158
2008 2007
ki s
More than Maore than
Total More than 2years Total More than 2years
contractual Within 1 1 year but but less contractual Within 1 1 year but hut less
Carrying ~ undiscounted ~ yearoron less than than 5 Camying  undiscounted yearoron Jess than than b
amount cash flow demand 2years years amount cash flow demand 2years years
Ak Al
biglxa B -ENEE REMLE fiRe -ER -EIE BENLE

BEE  RBAE  4EEX  JNRE JREF REE  RESE  AREX OME JRER
HKSODD  HKSOMD  HKSO0  HKSO0  HKSO0  HKSOD  HKSOID HKSOD KGO0 HS00
AL AL TR TEL TRR TR AL AL AL ThR

Bank borrowings BkE 130,541 (133,263) (1,484) 129,135) (2,644) 150829 (167.974) (6,535) (33280) [128,157)
Credors and ENSHRERS

accrued charges 6,788 6,788) 4.941) - (1.847) 9,062 9,062) 7,253 - 1.809)
Amount due to the utimate RSN

folding company DR 152 (152) (152) - - 6 6] 6] - -
Amount e to ENEERTRE

related companies 2997 (2.997) (2.997) - - 2489 (2,489 (2489 - -
Loan froma -BRZNELE

felow subsidary Rt ER - - - - - n 1359) (11 (1) (336)

140478 (143,200) (9574) (129,135 (4491) 162,688 (179,889 (16,294 (33,293) [130,302)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

26. 4L Bg AT B R AP (41)

a)  Financial risk factor (Continued) a)  A@EREEEK (4)
ii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) i) B E R ()
The Company
NG|
2008 2007
il s
Total Total
contractual Within 1 contractual Within 1
Carrying  undiscounted year or on Carrying  undiscounted year or on
amount cash flow demand amount cash flow demand
SRR - BHRIH —FR
REE RER2LE REXR REE RensEs REX
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fhx Thx ThRL TR TAT TAR
Creditors and FERTHR R B R
accrued charges 517 (517) (517) 1,260 (1,260) (1,260)
iii)  Interest rate risk iit) IR

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from non-current loan receivable, bank
borrowings and loan from a fellow subsidiary.
The interest rates and maturity information of
the Group’s non-current loan receivable, bank
borrowings and loan from the fellow subsidiary
are disclosed in notes 16, 21 and 29(b)(ii)
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

a) Financial risk factor (Continued)

iii)

iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2008,

general increase/decrease of 1 percentage

it is estimated that a

in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s result after tax and retained profits by
approximately HK$21,000 (2007: HK$259,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the balance sheet date
and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for both derivative and non-derivative
financial instruments in existence at that date.
For variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year. The 1 percentage
increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2007.

Currency risk
Currency risk arises on financial instruments that
are denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency in which they are measured.

The Group's exposure to currency risk is

insignificant.

26. 4L Bg AT B R AP (51

a) bR K (5)

i)

iv)

FIF R ()

TR E I

RZZEZENEFE+ A
=+—H EABEHMBT
THEH#FTE2BR
T fEERENE A
TEE AL AEERZ
BrBiie 48 KRB E TR
L HEAN#I 21,0008 7T (=
TETHF 1 259,00087T) °

bt R E D A T R R A
EEPRNEFEELEM
BE YEFAZBREHRE
ZUTERFETESRTA
Z AR R o hIFB A K
fEEMmME » ZAMIHRE

REERZAREERES
BEREFREESEM
e - SEinsiR 1 EE D
%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%%
NEETEFEEER
ET%Q@Z%%°:
TEF 2 MR EAR
EAEETT -

‘bﬁgﬂ 2R B AT R RAE
PEBNINEEEBHE
RINESRT A -
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TEA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

b)  Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2008 and 2007.

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of

financial instruments set out above.

i) Securities
Fair value for the unquoted equity investments
are estimated using the applicable fair value
measurement of the relevant assets and

liabilities of the investee.

ii)  Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. COMMITMENTS

a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2008 not provided for in the financial statements were

as follows:

27. R

a)

MEMEPRTRBEIRN_ZZ
NET_A=+—RAKEEZE
TEPENT

2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
Contracted for =EIES)
- redevelopment — B 7 EERA
cost of investment property 2,736 7,381

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land and
buildings classified as being held under finance leases
and properties held for sale are described in notes 13
and 17.

The Group leased out investment property and
properties held for sale under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of one to two
years, with an option to renew the lease after that
date at which time all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually reviewed every year to reflect
market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent

rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment property

are classified as investment property.

BEAREREHEESANMFHE
HEMEZERALHEETZE
AREERBE N E13R17 -

FEBRBLEHEOLEREY
XRFBEHEZYR  NIFH
HRER —ZMF  BHKA
BERGREMERAZEME - B
TRTEFETERARRTS
HEKF - BHEEERSHAE

£

FERBEERNBEATAR
BENEEBRZNERERKREY
E
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 27.

d)

(LU TTtHE)

The Group's total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable

as follows:

R (&)

AEERBE TN AIHEEEHEO
AREUREESERENT

The Group as lessor AEBEERLHEA
2008 2007
—EEN\FE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Within 1 year —FLAR 1,860 928
After 1 year but within 5 years —FUERAFUARN 1,083 325
2,943 1,253
Apart from the above leases, the Group is the lessee in (c) PBRUALEMEI  KEEABIER

respect of a number of properties held under operating

leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of

one to three years, with an option to renew the lease

when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2008, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases in

respect of office properties and office equipment are

payable as follows:

BEREBOBEZ2MEZAM

A

o

—E=4F - AR

HEHEZNEFHAT R

BENERA

EREED - ZSHEMERSR

R=FENF+=A=+—8
ERRAENERRAERAES
R A R T 2R A
HEBERSBENT

The Group as lessee REBEREA
2008 2007
—EENF CZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FHAT
Within 1 year —FLAR 1,903 2,833
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEUBEBEERFUAN 180 1,115
2,083 3,948

At 31 December 2008, the Company had no material

commitments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥

28. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

29.

As as the balance sheet date, the Company issued the

following guarantees:

a)

At 31 December 2008, the Company had given
unconditional guarantees to banks to secure loan
facilities made available to certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries to the extent of approximately HK$318
million (2007: HK$237 million). The extent of such
facilities utilized by these subsidiaries at the balance
sheet date amounted to approximately HK$130 million
(2007: HK$151 million).

At 31 December 2008, the Company had given
corporate guarantees to a bank for issuing letters
of indemnity to third parties in respect of contracts
undertaken by a wholly-owned subsidiary to the extent
of approximately HK$268,000 (2007: HK$268,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income

in respect of the above guarantees issued because the

fair value of these guarantees was insignificant. As at the

balance sheet date, the directors do not consider it probable

that a claim will be made against the Company under any of

the guarantees.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

a)

Key management personnel remuneration
All members of key management personnel are the
directors of the Company, and the remuneration for

them is disclosed in note 7.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

28. BRAREE K

29.

WEER - ARRIEEITUTHER

a) RIZEENF+_A=+—8"
AR B A R AT IR A A R
R UERET2EWBRTL
318,000,000 L (=TT 4 ¢
237,000,000 7) 25 ERE o
REER  ZESWBAREEA
Z 5 R H 49 130,000,000 7% 7T

(ZZ =+ 4 : 151,000,000
TT) e
b) RZTENF+ZA=+—H"

ARAREHRBRITA—HEZEWNE
REFEEZAHME=TE
PR - AERITIE R A A &R
#1268,0008 T(Z T £ F :
268,000 7T) °

$/‘§Jﬂi?dﬁjz‘ft EITRERIEREM
RIEWA lﬁtTﬁEE YREERZRF
BEAEXFTEKR -REEH  EERAR

(R T E A A T AR 2 I &
K o

HEEBBALRY

a) HEEHAHME
EHEREREARY/ARAE
= HMSRERHET -
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

29, EEBHEA LR (5)

b)  Financing arrangements b) EAERHE
Amounts Amounts
owed by owed to Related interest
related parties related parties (expenses)/income
As at As at Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
EBALTIR HEREHALIE HEERE () WA
R+=A=+-8 WT=A=+-B #E+T-A=+-BLEE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\FE —TTHHFE CZEEN\F _—TTLF ZBEN\E _—TTtF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt TEx TET TEx THET TEx TAT
Due to a related JER— R A R FUE
company (i) - - 2,997 2,489 - -
Due to the ultimate JER B ERR
holding company DAFURE (i) - 152 6 - -
Loan from a fellow U EESnliE
subsidiary RAZER (i) - - 302 - 2
Loan to a fellow B TRZ RS
subsidiary RAZER {i, i 54 - - - -
Loan to a director of BT —RNE AR
a subsidiary EEVEN (ii), {iv) 490 - - - 39
Notes: B 5

The outstanding balances with these related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.
The amounts owed to related parties are included in “Trade
and other payables” (note 20) and the amount owed by a
related party are included in “other non — current financial

assets” (note 16).

The loan from a fellow subsidiary is generally non-trade in
nature, unsecured and settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur in the foreseeable future. Interest incurred by
the fellow subsidiary on bank borrowings taken to provide
financing to this subsidiary is charged to the Company based
on utilisation of funds by the subsidiary. The effective interest
rate ranges from approximately 3% to 5.8% per annum. The
interest rates will be repriced within six months of the balance
sheet date.
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29. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

29, EEBHEA LS (H)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

b)  Financing arrangements (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

b)

iii) No impairment for bad or doubtful debts has been made in

respect of these loans.

iv) Further details of the loan to this individual, being a director of

a subsidiary, are disclosed in note 16.

Details of new loans and loans repaid during the period

are disclosed in the cash flow statement.

c) Other related party transactions

c)

i) During the year ended 31 December 2007,
the Group acquired the entire interest in the
Goldease Group from HFC. Further details of this

transaction are disclosed in note 30.

ii) During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group paid management fee of approximately
HK$7.9 million (2007: HK$2.7 million) to the
HF Land Group for share of administrative

expenses. The management fee is determined
quarterly between the respective parties after
negotiations having regard to the cost of services

provided. In the opinion of the Company’s

directors, this transaction was conducted on

normal commercial terms and in the ordinary

course of the Group’s business.

i) During the year ended 31 December 2008,

the Group paid to fellow subsidiaries an
amount of approximately HK$1,039,000 (2007:
HK$327,000) for share of office expenses. Fees

for share of office expenses were mutually

agreed by both parties. In the opinion of the

Company’s directors, this transaction was

conducted on normal commercial terms and in

the ordinary course of the Group's business.

Y Kok ()

Bt

iii)

(&)

I 5k % 5 B RAE R AR
1

AR T UL AL (B —FIFI B 2
RIZER)2ERZE—SHE
THE R 16 o

HAFEERRCEEERZF
BIORERRESRER -

FU A B 2N - 32 5

i)

ii)

iii)

REBEEZTZTLHF+=
A=Z+—BHLFER-
AEBMABEREE EWRE
Goldeasef Bl Z & #f ##
wme BRAMIERS 2 #—
BB R BERMEES0

RBE-_ZZNE+_A
“t+—BLFE AEE
EoETHEZmAHF
Land B X HERELD
7,900,000% w( = T &
+ 4 : 2,700,000 7T ) °
EBEHBEAALESE
SR RTIR 4 2 AR 75 B A BE
EEETE - ARAEER
B RRSTE—MEE
BERAERAEERBER
RIZHETT o

REBEE-ZTZENF+=A
=t+t—HIEFE ~5&H
Ao AZERZ AR
XM B AR XN RIEL
1,039,000 L (=T +
1 327,000 7T) ° D1k
MAERZBRATIBRES
HEHE - AAREER
RCERSDIE—REE
BRENANEE BB ER
BIZHHETT o
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

30. GROUP REORGANIZATION AND
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

a)

Group reorganization

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Group underwent a reorganization (the “Group
Reorganization”), details of which are set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 30 June 2007 and which
was completed on 1 August 2007. Pursuant to the
Group Reorganization, the Company distributed all of
the ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each held by it in the
issued share capital of Hong Fok Land International
Limited ("HF Land”), a company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and which was then a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company before 1
August 2007, in specie out of its credit arising from the
Company’s retained profits and contributed surplus
to the equity shareholders of the Company whose
names appeared on the Register of Members of the
Company at the close of business on 25 July 2007 on
a one for one basis. The assets of HF Land include an

approximate 20.2% interest in HFC.

Subsequent to the Group Reorganization:

() the Company continues to be a listed company
and the Group excluding the HF Land Group
continues carrying on the businesses which
include the Group's property related businesses,
including the holding of the redevelopment
project at 38 Conduit Road in Hong Kong, and the

provision of horticultural services;
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

30. GROUP REORGANIZATION AND
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

a)

b)

Group reorganization (Continued)

ii) the HF Land Group continues carrying on the
businesses which includes the Group's previous
holding of the properties at 15 and 17 Magazine
Gap Road in Hong Kong, certain properties in
the PRC and an approximately 20.2% interest in

HFC, the Group’s previous associate; and

i) the HF Land's shares were distributed in specie
to the Company’s shareholders whose names
appeared on the Register of Members of the
Company at the close of business on 25 July
2007 on the basis of one HF Land share for each

of the Company's shares held.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Pursuant to an agreement entered into with HFC,
an associate of the Company at the date of the
agreement, during the year ended 31 December 2007,
the Group acquired the 100% equity interest in the
Goldease Group from HFC. The consideration was
settled partly in cash and partly by the issue of 900
million new ordinary shares of the Company to HFC
after which the latter became the ultimate holding

company of the Company.

30. 4 1 oA B O B )R 2 vl ()

a)

b)

R (4)

i)  HF LandEBEEKE R
BEL EPBEAEE
ERBAEREFCIIKE
15 K172 % - P E
CETHMEERNERESE
($%l2%mﬁ%& )
#4920.2% 2 HEZE

i) HF LandlRh 2 EWH
EKFR_ZZTZELFLA
T+ RHAEERBERE
B ARRTRE AW 2R
RNAIRE RERETRE
1TIRARARIRGES IR 1’
HF Landf&{7 °

W W )8 A )
BEREEZ_ZZTLtF+ A
= T—BIEFENHEBEEE
(R B BAERRRZHE R
AR 2 e - NEE MR
FH B Goldease 2@ 2 100%
fetE o REHLOHUNREES N
i &0 Bl iE i M 6 48 B 81T
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #% ~FEENFEA " H =+—H IFFE&
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)  (LAi#ICETE)

30. GROUP REORGANIZATION AND
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

30. 4 P AL B BOWE YR 2 ] (A1)

b)  Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) b) OB A w (41)
Wi Goldease S H 2 2 Bz &Y
rEBEERBBEZZENT

The acquisition of the entire interest in the Goldease

Group had the following effect on the Group's assets

and liabilities:
Carrying Carrying
values prior Fair value values upon
to acquisition adjustments acquisition
WEEAEREE ATEAE WEAREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEx
Acquiree’s net assets at G- UNGIE
the date of acquisition Az EEFE
Fixed assets EEEE 642 - 642
Property held for sale HIEME 2% 133,123 31,041 164,164
Trade and other receivables 25N H M REERIR 1,671 - 1,671
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB eEEY 10,847 - 10,847
Trade and other payables B 5 K B At T ARIE (3,540) - (3,540)
Tax payables FERITIE (812) - (812)
Amount due to the ultimate JE S S AIE A B FUR
holding company (6) - (6)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIAAE - (5,588) (5,588)
Bank borrowings RITEE (37,009) - (37,009)
Net assets acquired Friis w BEFE 104,916 25,453 130,369
Goodwill (note 14) P (M 14) 321,122
451,491
Satisfied by: SHAERE:
— Cash consideration -ReRE 23,991
- 900 million new shares —900,000,000 %
of the Company (note) RAFEBR (FiIE) 427,500
451,491
Net outflow of cash and cash FHEKENBLARZRS
equivalents in respect of the RESEEYMRLTFE
acquisition of subsidiaries:
Cash consideration BeRE 23,991
Less: Cash and cash equivalents TRz RE R
acquired ReEEY (10,847)
Net outflow of cash and cash Re kB eEED
equivalents TR 13,144
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥

30. GROUP REORGANIZATION AND

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Note: As part of the consideration for the acquisition of the Goldease Group,
900 million new ordinary shares of the Company with a par value
of HK$0.05 each were issued. The fair value of these 900 million
ordinary shares of the Company, determined using the published price
available at the date of the acquisition, amounted to HK$427,500,000.

The Goldease Group's loss of approximately HK$402,000
since the date of acquisition was included in the Group’s loss
for the year ended 31 December 2007.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2007, the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2007 would have been HK$89,201,000 and
loss for the year ended 31 December 2007 would have
been HK$289,456,000. This pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication
of revenue and results of operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2007, nor is it intended to be a

projection of future results.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

30. 5 1 T AR B MO B 2 [ (4)

Mizf: F B Goldease EEREZ — %
5+ 27X 8] 2 %17 900,000,000 % & %
HEOSETZ AR EBR - Z
900,000,000 & A2 7] ¥ i@ it 2 A FE
DEARKERE Ah 2 BRET A
427,500,000 7 7T °

Goldease 5B 5 Wi H A RE £ EIE
#9402,000 8 TEFFAXRSEEREZE
CEELF+ A=+ RIEFECZE
8 o

BN TS+ F—A—B%K - &
EEREBE-_ZTTLFT-_A=1T—8
IEFE 2 #UA FE 789,201,000 7T
518/ /5 289,456,000 /8 7T ° £ &t
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Annual Report 2008 —ZF % J\4EEHR 137



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % 4
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

31.

32.

FENAE A ZH = A H I

(LU L aTHE)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2008, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Company to be
HFL International Consortium Limited, which is incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability, and Hong Fok
Corporation Limited, which is incorporated with limited
liability and listed in the Republic of Singapore, respectively.
The immediate parent company does not produce financial
statements available for public use while the ultimate
controlling party produces financial statements for public

use.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 13, 14, and 26 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of
investment properties, goodwill impairment and financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty

are as follows:

a)  Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant

changes from previous estimates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF ¥

32. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

b)

¢

d)

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realizable value at the balance sheet date. Net
realizable value is determined on the basis of the
estimated selling price less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The directors estimate the
net realizable value for inventories based primarily on
the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
In addition, the directors perform an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at each year end date
and assess the need for write down of inventories.

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectibility. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer. Any increase or decrease in the
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts would

affect profit or loss in future years.

Impairment losses for goodwill

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed by the Group at each balance sheet date to
assess whether there is any indication that goodwill
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the goodwill is estimated.
Changes in facts and circumstances may result in
revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication
of impairment exists and revised estimates of
recoverable amounts, which would affect profit or loss

in future years.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 # % 4
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

32.

33.

FE /A ZH = A H IR

(VLB TLATE)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

e)  Recognition of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carried
forward are recognised and measured based on
the expected manner of realization or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. In determining the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of assumptions
relating to the operating environment of the Group
and requires significant level of judgement exercised
by the directors. Any change in such assumptions
and judgement would affect the carrying amounts of
deferred tax assets to be recognised and hence the net
profit in future years.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 December 2008 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial

application.

So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to result in a restatement of the Group’s or the Company’s
results of operations and financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2008 #; % ~FEE/NFA " H =+—H IF %
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICq]H)

33. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 3B. REZEFZANET A
NEW STANDARDS AND = H kAR JE OB fE Vg AR
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT ARG ~ B G REZ
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED W RBRY B (4H)

31 DECEMBER 2008 (CONTINUED)

In addition, the following developments are expected to gboh - Y B TE B E HAN B
result in amended disclosures in the financial statements, WMEFIEHSETHE - 2EEIR
including restatement of comparative amounts in the first BIXRAEAR 2 LSBT

period of adoption:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BEAs A2 B 1R

ZEETHEEN

HKFRS 8, Operating segments 1 January 2009

BRI IMERERIE ST AL T —EThF—-HA—H
HKAS 1 (revised 2007),

Presentation of financial statements 1 January 2009

BAGTHERIE N 5 A BHE S 25 —ETNF-HA—H
ZETLFKIEET)
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Group Properties 45 )¢

Particulars of the Group’s major properties held for sale or for

investment as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Properties held for sale

AEBR-_ZEZENF+-_A=Z+—HZxZ
BIEHERREMEFBOT -

Fife i B4 3%

Percentage

Gross floor area interest attributable

sq. m. to the Group
Location Existing Use HIREMEE EEE LR
ok RiE AR FHK Batt
3 units of ten@suffolk at Residential 360 100%
Suffolk Road, Singapore F=
N3
8 units of Jewel of Balmoral Residential 1,250 100%
at Balmoral Park, Singapore F=
TN

Properties held for investment EcE(i'a= L7k S

Location Existing Use Term of lease
2 RIE AR HAFH

38 Conduit Road, Hong Kong Residential premises redevelopment Long term
BB TEEISH in progress K

EEME - FETH
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Notice of Annual General Meeting J§ 3 38 4F K 7 i %

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting
of the Company will be held at Room 3201, 9 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong on 11 May 2009 at 11:00 a.m. for the following
purposes:

(1) To receive and consider the statement of accounts and the
reports of the directors and the auditors for the year ended
31 December 2008.

(2)  To re-elect retiring directors and to fix their remuneration.

(3)  To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors
to fix their remuneration.

(4)  To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without
amendments, the following resolutions as Ordinary
Resolutions:

A.  "THAT there be granted to the directors of the
Company an unconditional general mandate to
repurchase shares of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the
Company and that the exercise by the directors of the
Company of all powers of the Company to purchase
shares of the Company subject to and in accordance
with all applicable laws, be and are hereby generally
and unconditionally approved, subject to the following
conditions:

(@) such mandate shall not extend beyond the
Relevant Period;

(b)  the aggregate nominal amount of share capital of
the Company to be purchased by the directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period shall
not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue as at the date of passing this Resolution;

BBEARNREIIRN -_ZZAFERA+—H
EF+—BEREBERFREFPIFHI201E
BIIRBEERES  LUEETHIEE

(1) HEREEBE-FTNAFT-A
St-BLFEYRARRURES
EWE LB -

(2) BHMEREREENETEEME -

B) BHREARUMEAREEESETX
REDEN S -

(4) ZREBBEE(BEBESER) T
ZREBRBEBRER

A TEEE — AR R R R B AR
BTARFETE —REENE
Bl AR RQ AR AH MR EE0.05
BILZEG WRARBIESSE
KRRAT B E A 2 ED R H R
TATEARR R — &N ABAR
RNEIZRG - ASZ AT EER
il

(a) ZIRETEELEEAHHE
LATZ

b) ARAREZEFTEREBHEMH
WEEE 2 RAE BB -
TS BB D AR AR
XEBBABCBITRAE
B4B%E210% :
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(c)  for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of passing this Resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

() the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of
the Company or any applicable laws of
Bermuda to be held; and

(i) the revocation or variation of this
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.”

B. “THAT there be granted to the directors of the
Company an unconditional general mandate to issue,
allot and deal with additional shares in the capital of
the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options including warrants, bonds and debentures
convertible into shares in respect thereof, subject to
the following conditions:

(@) such mandate shall not extend beyond the
Relevant Period save that the directors of the
Company may during the Relevant Period make
or grant offers, agreements and options including
warrants, bonds and debentures convertible into
shares which might require the exercise of such
powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

1 44 Winfoong International Limited 4% 4 5 BX 4 R /A 7]
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the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally, to be allotted (whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise) and issued by the
directors of the Company pursuant to sub-
paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to
(i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) the
exercise of rights of subscription or conversion
attaching to any warrants issued by the Company
or any securities which are convertible into
shares of the Company; (iii) any issue of shares in
the Company under any option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted for
the grant or issue to officers and/or employees
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
of shares or rights to shares; and (iv) any scrip
dividend or similar arrangement providing for the
allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of
a dividend on shares in accordance with the bye-
laws of the Company in force from time to time;
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of
the Company in issue on the date of passing
this Resolution and the approval granted shall be
limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

"Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of passing this Resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

() the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of
the Company or any applicable laws of
Bermuda to be held; and

(i)  the revocation or variation of this
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.

(b)

(c)
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C.

"Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for
a period fixed by the directors of the Company to
holders of shares on the register of members of
the Company on a fixed record date in proportion
to their then holdings of such shares (subject to
such exclusions or other arrangements as the
directors of the Company may deem necessary
or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements
or having regard to any restriction or obligation
under the laws of, or the requirements of
any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, or in any territory outside, Hong
Kong)."”

“THAT, conditional upon the passing of the
Resolutions Nos. A and B above, the aggregate
nominal amount of the shares in the capital of the
Company which are repurchased by the Company
pursuant to and in accordance with the Resolution
No. A above shall be added to the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company that may
be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be allotted by the directors of the Company pursuant to
and in accordance with the Resolution No. B above.”

To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without
amendments, the following resolution as Special
Resolution:

"THAT the bye-laws of the Company be and are hereby
amended in the follow manner:—

(i)

Bye-law 2

The existing Bye-law 2(e) provides that:

“expressions referring to writing shall, unless the
contrary intention appears, be construed as including
printing, lithography, photography and other modes of
representing words or figures in a visible form;”
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(ii)

Notice of Annual General Meeting J§ 3 38 4F K 7 i %

[t is proposed that the existing Bye-law 2(e) be
amended as follows:

“expressions referring to writing shall, unless the
contrary intention appears, be construed as including
printing, lithography, photography and other modes
of representing words or figures in a visible form and
including where the representation takes the form
of electronic display, provided that both the mode of
service of the relevant document or notice and the
member’s election comply with applicable Statues,
rules and regulations;”

Bye-law 44

The existing Bye-law 44 provides that:

“44. The Register and branch register of Members,
as the case may be, shall be open to inspection
between 10 a.m. and 12 noon on every business day
by Members without charge or by any other person,
upon a maximum payment of five Bermuda dollars,
at the Office or such other place in Bermuda at which
the Register is kept in accordance with the Act or, if
appropriate, upon a maximum payment of ten dollars
at the Registration Office. The Register including any
overseas or local or other branch register of Members
may, after notice has been given by advertisement
in an appointed newspaper and where applicable,
any other newspapers in accordance with the
requirements of any Designated Stock Exchange to
that effect, be closed at such times or for such periods
not exceeding in the whole thirty (30) days in each year
as the Board may determine and either generally or in
respect of any class of shares.”

(ii)
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(iii)

It is proposed that the existing Bye-law 44 be amended
as follows.

“44. The Register and branch register of Members,
as the case may be, shall be open to inspection
between 10 a.m. and 12 noon on every business
day by Members without charge or by any other
person, upon a maximum payment of five Bermuda
dollars, at the Office or such other place in Bermuda
at which the Register is kept in accordance with the
Act or, if appropriate, upon a maximum payment of
ten dollars at the Registration Office. The Register
including any overseas or local or other branch register
of Members may, after notice has been given by
advertisement in an appointed newspaper and where
applicable, any other newspapers in accordance with
the requirements of any Designated Stock Exchange
or by any means in such manner as may be accepted
by the Designated Stock Exchange to that effect, be
closed at such times or for such periods not exceeding
in the whole thirty (30) days in each year as the Board
may determine and either generally or in respect of any
class of shares.”

Bye-law 51

The existing Bye-law 51 provides that:

“B1. The registration of transfers of shares or of any
class of shares may, after notice has been given by
advertisement in an appointed newspaper and, where
applicable, any other newspapers in accordance with
the requirements of any Designated Stock Exchange
to that effect be suspended at such times and for such
periods (not exceeding in the whole thirty (30) days in
any year) as the Board may determine.”
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(iv)
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It is proposed that the existing Bye-law 51 be amended
as follows:

“B1. The registration of transfers of shares or of any
class of shares may, after notice has been given by
advertisement in an appointed newspaper and, where
applicable, any other newspapers in accordance with
the requirements of any Designated Stock Exchange
or by any means in such manner as may be accepted
by the Designated Stock Exchange to that effect be
suspended at such times and for such periods (not
exceeding in the whole thirty (30) days in any year) as
the Board may determine.”

Bye-law 55(2)(c)

The existing Bye-law 55(2)(c) provides that:

“the Company, if so required by the rules governing
the listing of shares on the Designed Stock Exchange,
has given notice to, and caused advertisement in
newspapers in accordance with the requirements of,
the Designated Stock Exchange to be made of its
intention to sell such shares in the manner required by
the Designated Stock Exchange, and a period of three
(3) months or such shorter period as may be allowed
by the Designated Stock Exchange has elapsed since
the date of such advertisement.”

It is proposed that the existing Bye-law 55(2)(c) be
amended as follows:

“the Company, if so required by the rules governing
the listing of shares on the Designed Stock Exchange,
has given notice to, and caused advertisement in
newspapers in accordance with the requirements of,
the Designated Stock Exchange or by any means to be
made of its intention to sell such shares in the manner
required by the Designated Stock Exchange, and a
period of three (3) months or such shorter period as
may be allowed by the Designated Stock Exchange
has elapsed since the date of such advertisement.”
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(v)

Bye-law 86(4)

The existing Bye-law 86(4) provides that:

“Subject to any provision to the contrary in these
Bye-laws the Members may, at any general meeting
convened and held in accordance with these Bye-
laws, by special resolution remove a Director at any
time before the expiration of his period of office
notwithstanding anything in these Bye-laws or in any
agreement between the Company and such Director
(but without prejudice to any claim for damages under
any such agreement) provided that the Notice of any
such meeting convened for the purpose of removing
a Director shall contain a statement of the intention
so to do and be served on such Director fourteen (14)
days before the meeting and at such meeting such
Director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for
his removal.”

It is proposed that the existing Bye-law 86(4) be
amended as follows:

“Subject to any provision to the contrary in these
Bye-laws the Members may, at any general meeting
convened and held in accordance with these Bye-
laws, by ordinary resolution remove a Director at
any time before the expiration of his period of office
notwithstanding anything in these Bye-laws or in any
agreement between the Company and such Director
(but without prejudice to any claim for damages under
any such agreement) provided that the Notice of any
such meeting convened for the purpose of removing
a Director shall contain a statement of the intention
so to do and be served on such Director fourteen (14)
days before the meeting and at such meeting such
Director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for
his removal.”
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(vi)

(vii)
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Bye-law 87(1)

The existing Bye-law 87(1) provides that:

“87.(1) Notwithstanding any other provisions in the
Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three(3), the number nearest to
but not greater than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything
herein, the chairman of the Board and/or the managing
director of the Company shall not, whilst holding such
office, be subject to retirement by rotation or be taken
into account in determining the number of Directors to
retire in each year.”

It is proposed that the existing Bye-law 87(1) be
amended as follows:

“87.(1) Notwithstanding any other provisions in the
Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting one-half of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not a multiple of two (2), the number nearest to but not
greater than one-half) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that notwithstanding anything herein, the
chairman of the Board and/or the managing director
of the Company shall not, whilst holding such office,
be subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into
account in determining the number of Directors to
retire in each year.”

Bye-laws 153A and 153B

By inserting the following paragraphs as new Bye-laws
153A and 153B immediately after existing Bye-law
153:

“153A. To the extent permitted by and subject to
due compliance with all applicable Statutes, rules
and regulations, including, without limitation, the
rules of the Designated Stock Exchange, and to
obtaining all necessary consents, if any, required

(vi)

(vii)

AMBIZE 87(1) 1%

AR 87(1) §ETRE ¢

[87.01) BME MR =B EMMRE
REBRRBFRG L BERHEE
2= —EBHR(RMARLIE=
B) 28 MRREIETE
B=N—2Z ANB)BARESE
HERMEAMR S B EMBRE - &
FEERN/REARAEFRL
BEEERBARESEINEEE
BFRARIZEFABBYAE
ER -

EHEMREAMRES7() LA
TMERT -

[87.(1) B4R S B (AT -
RERFBEFRE L BREML
ZZH—EE(HMABLIE=
(2) 2 &8 - AlARERETER
TH—ZAB)ERESR
BIEARBRSEEMABRE  £F
CERRURNARERBLLIR
EIBBAGESEXNGEETE
FRARAZEFTAMESWITEL
Ao

4R BI5E 153A 1§ X 55 153B {5

RIBEMAIE 153 8B E AT
#HANZE 153A 5 228 163B 14 -

[163A. EMAEMAZER - R A
FAR B (B BT RN IEE & 7
RS HRAN) FAEER R Z
RBTZEFER - BAIRRB
T AREBSZEESR - RAI

Annual Report 2008 &% J\4F4EH

151



Notice of Annual General Meeting J§¢ 3 38 4E K £ @ 1%

(viii)

thereunder, the requirements of Bye-law 153 shall
be deemed satisfied in relation to any person by
sending to the person in any manner not prohibited
by the Statutes, summarised financial statements
derived from the Company’s annual accounts and
the directors’ report which shall be in the form and
containing the information required by applicable laws
and regulations, provided that any person who is
otherwise entitled to the annual financial statements
of the Company and the directors’ report thereon
may, if he so requires by notice in writing served on
the Company, demand that the Company sends to
him, in addition to summarised financial statements,
a complete printed copy of the Company’s annual
financial statement and the directors’ report thereon.”

“153B. The requirement to send to a person referred
to in Bye-law 153 the documents referred to in that
provision or a summary financial report in accordance
with Bye-law 153A shall be deemed satisfied where,
in accordance with all applicable Statutes, rules and
regulations, including, without limitation, the rules
of the Designated Stock Exchange, the Company
publishes copies of the documents referred to in Bye-
law 153 and, if applicable, a summary financial report
complying with Bye-law 153A, on the Company's
computer network or in any other permitted
manner (including by sending any form of electronic
communication), and that person has agreed or
is deemed to have agreed to treat the publication
or receipt of such documents in such manner as
discharging the Company’s obligation to send to him a
copy of such documents.”

Bye-law 160

The existing Bye-law 160 provides that :

“160. Any Notice from the Company to a Member
shall be in either English or Chinese and shall be given
in writing or by cable, telex or facsimile transmission
message or by email and any such Notice and (where
appropriate) any other document may be served
or delivered by the Company on or to any member
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either personally or by sending it though the post in
a prepaid envelope addressed to such Member at his
registered address as appearing in the Register or at
any other address supplied by him to the Company for
the purpose or, as the case may be, by transmitting it
to any such address or transmitting it to any telex or
facsimile transmission number or any email address
supplied by him to the Company for the giving of
Notice to him or which the person transmitting the
notice reasonably and bona fide believes at the
relevant time will result in the Notice being duly
received by the Member or may also be served by
advertisement in appointed newspapers (as defined
in the Act) or in accordance with the requirements of
the Designated Stock Exchange. In the case of joint
holders of a share all notices shall be given to that
one of the joint holders whose name stands first in
the Register and notice so given shall be deemed
a sufficient service on or delivery to all the joint
holders.”

It is proposed that the existing Bye-law 160 be
amended as follows:

“160. Any Notice or document (including any
“corporate communication” within the meaning
ascribed thereto under the rules of the Designated
Stock Exchange), whether or not, to be given or
issued under these Bye-laws from the Company
to a Member shall be in writing or by cable, telex
or facsimile transmission message or other form
of electronic transmission or communication and
any such Notice and document may be served or
delivered by the Company on or to any Member
either personally or by sending it through the post in
a prepaid envelope addressed to such Member at his
registered address as appearing in the Register or at
any other address supplied by him to the Company for
the purpose or, as the case may be, by transmitting it
to any such address or transmitting it to any telex or
facsimile transmission number or electronic number or
address or website supplied by him to the Company
for the giving of Notice to him or which the person
transmitting the notice reasonably and bona fide
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(ix)

believes at the relevant time will result in the Notice
being duly received by the Member or may also be
served by advertisement in appointed newspapers
(as defined in the Act) or in newspapers published
daily and circulating generally in the territory of and in
accordance with the requirements of the Designated
Stock Exchange or, to the extent permitted by the
applicable laws, by placing it on the Company's
website or the website of the Designated Stock
Exchange, and giving to the member a notice stating
that the notice or other document is available there (a
“notice of availability”). The notice of availability may
be given to the Member by any of the means set out
above. In the case of joint holders of a share all notices
shall be given to that one of the joint holders whose
name stands first in the Register and notice so given
shall be deemed a sufficient service on or delivery to
all the joint holders.”

Bye-law 161

The existing Bye-law 161 provides that:

“161. Any Notice or other document:

(@) if served or delivered by post, shall where
appropriate be sent by airmail and shall be
deemed to have been served or delivered on
the day following that on which the envelope
containing the same, properly prepaid and
addressed, is put into the post; in proving such
service or delivery it shall be sufficient to prove
that the envelope or wrapper containing the
notice or document was properly addressed
and put into the post and a certificate in writing
signed by the Secretary or other officer of the
Company or other person appointed by the Board
that the envelope or wrapper containing the
notice or other document was so addressed and
put into the post shall be conclusive evidence
thereof; and
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if served or delivered in any other manner
contemplated by these Bye-laws, shall be
deemed to have been served or delivered at the
time of personal service or delivery or, as the
case may be, at the time of the relevant despatch
or transmission; and in proving such service or
delivery a certificate in writing signed by the
Secretary or other officer of the Company or
other person appointed by the Board as to the
fact and time of such service, delivery, despatch
or transmission shall be conclusive evidence
thereof.

It is proposed that the existing Bye-law 161 be

amended as follows:

“161. Any Notice or other document:

(a)

if served or delivered by post, shall where
appropriate be sent by airmail and shall be
deemed to have been served or delivered on
the day following that on which the envelope
containing the same, properly prepaid and
addressed, is put into the post; in proving such
service or delivery it shall be sufficient to prove
that the envelope or wrapper containing the
notice or document was properly addressed
and put into the post and a certificate in writing
signed by the Secretary or other officer of the
Company or other person appointed by the Board
that the envelope or wrapper containing the
Notice or other document was so addressed and
put into the post shall be conclusive evidence
thereof;

if sent by electronic communication, shall be
deemed to be given on the day on which it is
transmitted from the server of the Company or
its agent. A Notice placed on the Company's
website or the website of the Designated Stock
Exchange is deemed given by the Company to
a Member on the day following that on which
a notice of availability is deemed served on the
Member;

(b)
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(c) if served or delivered in any other manner
contemplated by these Bye-laws, shall be
deemed to have been served or delivered at
the time of personal service or delivery or, as
the case may be, at the time of the relevant
despatch, transmission or publication; and in
proving such service or delivery a certificate in
writing signed by the Secretary or other officer
of the Company or other person appointed by
the Board as to the fact and time of such service,
delivery, despatch, transmission or publication
shall be conclusive evidence thereof; and

(d)  may be given to a Member either in the English
language or the Chinese language, subject to due
compliance with all applicable Statutes, rules and

"

regulations.

By Order of the Board

Winfoong International Limited
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 3 April 2009

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a
member of the Company.

2. Concerning Resolution No. (4)B above, the Directors wish to state that
they have no immediate plans to issue any new shares of the Company
but approval is being sought from the members as a general mandate for
the purpose of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).

3. The register of members of the Company will be closed from 7 May 2009 to
11 May 2009, both days inclusive, for the purpose of establishing entitlement
of shareholders to vote at the meeting. During this period, no transfers of
shares will be effected. All transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 6 May 2009.

4. The translation into Chinese language of this notice (including the Special
Resolution which contains the proposed amendments to the bye-laws) is for
reference only. In case of any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.

156 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

(c) WAKRDRMAMAFER ZH
i 73 7R R BRIE - A
BER R G K EHEER
ReEF#E -~ FRHAMEX
ERRE - MAARWE
HEMARFZ ABHE
R EFESHIRKATRZ
REXE 5% &
IR EERBRRE
MERLEARZKKZI
B R

(d) EFAEMBERZZED
BRAIRRBIT - ATAEX
A XA TR - )

AEFEW
KEEBREARAF
TR

fEpmE

T —ETNFUA=H

GEE

1. ABEHELEARRRAE EREZRE 2
TEE-MRREFLRERR - RREAS
ARFZBE -

2. MALEABRARENE  EFGERY
BRI R BB IT AR AUEMIRN - AR
AEREBMEZHMARARZSF ETHR
(TEMRA)  SHRERIER T —RIEE -

3. REETRRNRAG L2 RERE  A2FIKHEZ
EENFEFRA+LBE-_ZETAFRA+—RB(H
EMABIEEN) IEHREEHERGBFERL
FE - HEEARMDBPHHTEER - A
BEEERBECRE  ZEAR-_ZTTNF
AARNBTFOUE=1TH8 ' RRXAQAZE
BROBFPERIEEEPRESFZFLERD
A i AEBEFEFAER183EMH
17117121716 % »

4. RipE P IGER(BEHIERETAN S
RIRZBR) HEHRSE - AKRE - BIUARR
V=R



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Balance Sheet
	Balance Sheet
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Group Properties
	Notice of Annual General Meeting

